BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Agenda For
June 26, 2024
Regular Meeting — 5:00 p.m.
30 Mansfield Road - Hollister, California 95023

Assistance for those with disabilities:
If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk,
at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.

Effective at the April 27, 2022, The Board of Directors is now allowing the public to attend in person at all meetings of
the San Benito County Water District Board. We will also continue to offer the meeting via Zoom as well. Regarding
virtual participation, members of the public are instructed to be on mute during the proceedings and to speak only
when public comment is allowed, after requesting and receiving recognition from the Board President.

ZOOM LINK
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86406390789?pwd=y838xu55eDhODBe0VbacxZuxb7Ap7X.1

Meeting ID
864 0639 0789

Passcode:
203987

Dial Only:
Dial by your location
*+1 669 444 9171 US
e +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
e +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
* +1 719 359 4580 US
e +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver)

If you plan to participate in the meeting and need assistance, please call
Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting.

CALL TO ORDER

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

b. Roll Call

B. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will
be limited to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard
after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda

€. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter
not on the Agenda




CONSENT AGENDA:

{Consent items shall be considered as a whole and without discussion unless a particular item is removed from the
consent agenda. Board member may discuss individual items or seek information from staff or legal counsel without
removing the item from the Consent Agenda. A member of the public should seek recognition by the President if comment
is desired. Approval of consent items shall be made by one motion.)

1. Approval of Minutes for: May 20, 2024 Special Meeting
May 29, 2024 Regular Meeting

2. Allowance of Claims

3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the June Board Meeting

4. On Call Contracts — Status Updates
REGULAR AGENDA

5. FYE 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit

a. Presentation by McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman

b. Consider Acceptance and Authorize Distribution

6. Consider Approval and Authorize Interim General Manager to sign
Professional Services Contracts with MBCP, Inc. for Recruitment
Selection of:

a. General Manager (NTE $31,400)
b. District Engineer (NTE $31,400)

7. Consider Resolution for the San Benito County Water District, Acting as
the Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the North San Benito
Groundwater Basin, Requesting the County of San Benito to Collect a
Groundwater Management Fee on the Property Tax Rolls

8. Consider Approval and Authorize Interim General Manager to Execute a
Contract with Kennedy Jenks Inc. Consultants for Construction
Management Services Related to West Hills Water Treatment Plant
Expansion (NTE $ 1,850,997 with 5% contingency of $92,550)

9. Consider Approval and Authorize Interim General Manager to Execute a
Contract with Lidia Gutierrez Consultants for USBR WaterSmart Small
Storage Grant Administration (NTE $128,000)

10. Consider Approval of a Resolution to Award a Construction Contract in
the Amount of $146,850.00 to Bradley & Son’s, Inc. for Hollister Aquifer
Storage and Recovery Feasibility Exploratory Borehole 2.0 (Categorically
Exempt from CEQA per California Code of Regulations Title 14 Section
15306)



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

Consider Approval and Authorize Interim General Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Todd Groundwater for Professional Services Associated
with Aquifer Storage and Recovery Exploratory Boring, Fallon Road, San
Benito County Water District (NTE $40,000)

Discuss and Consider Resolution Adopting the 2024-2025 Salary
Schedule to comply with California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CALPERS) statutory and regulatory requirements for compensation
earnable and publicly available pay schedules

Consider Resolution Amending Retired Annuitant Employment
Agreement with Jeffrey Cattaneo

Committee /Agency Representative Reports:

a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Cattaneo)
b. Finance Committee (Shelton/*Flores)

c. Investment Committee (Flores/Williams)

d. Personnel Committee (Flores/Tonascia)

Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

General Manager’s Report:
a. Reach 1 Operations

o

Zone 3 Operations

Zone 6 Operations

a o

Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)
San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities

&S0

City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan
g. B F Sisk Dam Raise Project
h. Miscellaneous District items

CLOSED SESSION

Public Employee Performance Evaluation

Title: Manager of Administration, Finance, and Business Services
Authority: California Government Code § 54957

Public Employee Performance Evaluation
Title: District Counsel
Authority: California Government Code § 54957



19. Discuss Confidential Classification and Salary Step Adjustment for the
Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Position as requested by SEIU
§ 54957.6 Designated Representative: Jeff Cattaneo

20. OPEN SESSION
Report any action, if any, from Closed Session items

21. Adjournment

Adjournment - Unless there is a special meeting prior to that time, the next regular meeting of the Board will be Wednesday, July 31,
2024. Meetings are held at the District office, 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. LAST DAY TO FILE CLAIMS against the
District is the second Friday of each month, except in November and December. Usually meeting dates change in those months
because of holidays. The Board may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters, litigation or employee negotvattons as
authorized by the Ralph M. Brown Act, Evidence Code #950-962 or other appropriate State law.

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed to
all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the District office located at 30 Mansfield Road,
Hollister, California.




May 20, 2024
Special Meeting
5:00p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in special

session on Monday, May 20, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District office at
30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: President Andrew Shelton,
Vice President Doug Williams and Directors Sonny Flores, Joe Tonascia and Mark Wright. Also
present were District Counsel Jeremy T. Liem, Interim General Manager Jeff Cattaneo, Manager
of Administration, Finance and Business Services Megan Holland, Senior Engineer David
Macdonald, and members of the public were in attendance on zoom.

CALL TO ORDER

President Shelton called the meeting to order at 5:01p.m.

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
President Shelton led the Pledge of Allegiance.

b. Roll Call
Ms. Holland called roll; members present were: President Shelton, Vice President
Williams and Directors Flores, Tonascia and Wright.

c. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board

AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Consider Approval of Revised District Job Descriptions for:
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a. General Manager

b. District Engineer

c. Electrical- Electronic Technician

d. Water Conservation Program Manager

e. Water Distribution/Maintenance I/TI/III

Ms. Holland reviewed this item with the Board. She reported that these job descriptions
have been reviewed by the Personnel Committee, HR, Interim GM and herself and that
the majority of the changes to the job descriptions were not significant and more
technical in nature. Exception being that the lead duties were added to the Water
Distribution/Maintenance II/III and that on-call responsibility and emergency
management duties were added to the District Engineer Job Description and the General
Manager had some title adjustments. Mr. Cattaneo added that the one with the most
changes was the Electrical-Electronic Technician which Mr. Cattaneo brought up to
current language and standards and appropriate job tasks. Mr. Cattaneo added that the on-
call addition for the District Engineer allows for more people to carry on-call
responsibilities.

With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Director Tonascia, the Board of
Directors approved the revised job descriptions as presented for General Manager,
District Engineer, Electrical-Electronic Technician, Water Conservation Program
Manager and Water Distribution/Maintenance I/II/III with 5 affirmative votes, Shelton,
Williams, Flores, Tonascia and Wright.



2. Consider Resolution for Salary and Compensation for the General Manager RES
NO. 2024-18
Mr. Cattaneo presented this item. Staff and the Personnel Committee surveyed 8 or 9
different agencies that do the same type of activities the district is engaged in, some of
them on the coast, some in the valley and some locally. And after Mr. Cattaneo had
discussions with folks at conferences, and other activities, it became apparent that if the
district wanted to attract talent especially outside the area, there may be a need to make
some changes to the General Manager salary. In addition, any candidate coming from
outside the PERS system, if they are not a classic employee, retirement is significantly
different for new members (joining after 2013) are 2% at 62 for retirement, with a salary
cap of $135,000 which is much lower than the salary cap for classic members which is
$290,000-$300,000 per year, a new person coming in would be limited to $135,000
which makes a significant difference when attracting someone as your retirement is less
than half. We reviewed all the districts, and the range was about $205,000-$305,000
salary, we did not consider districts like Westlands which has about a $450,000 salary per
year or Santa Clara that is significantly larger in size and nature. The Personnel
Committee, after reviewing it, settled on a range of $240,000-$300,000 which gives the
district flexibility if they find a well-qualified candidate with a lot of years doing that
same type of work, if you find a candidate that is qualified without experience, they can
come in at a lower range. It also gives the district some flexibility so if you find a
candidate that also meets qualifications of the District Engineer.

With a motion by Vice President Doug Williams and a second by Director Wright, the
Board of Directors approved Resolution #2024-19, 4 Resolution for Salary and
Compensation for the General Manager with 5 affirmative votes, Shelton, Williams,
Flores, Tonascia and Wright.

3. Consider Resolution Amending the District Policy for Travel and Expense
Reimbursement RES NO. 2024-19
Ms. Holland reported that the Personnel Committee met over the last few months to
discuss and recommend the revision of the per diem meal rate from $58 per day to $78
per day due to inflation. The recommendation also removes per meal cap and allows for
individual choice on which meals are consumed within the day for Employee or Director
when traveling for the business of the district. With the change in this policy, it will also
require an amendment to the Personnel Policy which is next on the agenda.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Board of
Directors approved Resolution #2024-19, A Resolution Amending the District Policy for
Travel and Expense Reimbursement with 5 affirmative votes, Shelton, Williams, Flores,

Tonascia and Wright.

4. Consider Resolution Revising the Personnel Policy for the Travel Reimbursement
Amount and the Jury Duty Compensation RES NO. 2024-20
Ms. Holland reported the recommendation to revise the Personnel Policy with the
changes just discussed in the travel policy related to per diem meal rate and to revise Jury
Duty compensation. In the past, the district would require employees to submit any Jury
Duty compensation to the district, which are typically small checks, administratively it is
more costly to the district to process small, typically $15 checks, then to allow the
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employee to keep the checks. Additionally, the policy further clarifies that the district
only pays for the two weeks of jury duty and if the employee must stay longer than the
two weeks, as legally required, they can use their accrued leave or do whatever they need
to do to continue that service.

With a motion by Vice President Williams and a second by Director Wright, the Board of
Directors approved Resolution #2024-20, A Resolution Revising the Personnel Policy for
the Travel Reimbursement Amount and the Jury Duty Compensation with 5 affirmative
votes, Shelton, Williams, Flores, Tonascia and Wright.

4. ADJOURNMENT
With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:16 p.m.

Andrew Shelton, President

Megan Holland, Manager Administration, Finance
& Business Services
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May 29, 2024
Regular Meeting
5:00 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in regular
session on Wednesday, May 29, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District office
at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: Vice President Doug
Williams and Directors Joe Tonascia and Mark Wright; President Andrew Shelton and Director
Sonny Flores were absent. Also present were Interim General Manager Jeff Cattaneo, District
Counsel Jeremy T. Liem, Manager of Administration, Finance and Business Services Megan
Holland, Operations and Maintenance Manager Michael Craig, Senior Engineer David
Macdonald, Water Resources Technician I Dustin Franco, Office Specialist I Jennifer Cosio
Arellano, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Barbara Mauro and other District staff members were
in attendance.

CALL TO ORDER
Vice President Williams called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
Vice President Williams led the Pledge of Allegiance.

b. Roll Call
Mrs. Mauro called roll; members present were: Vice President Williams and Directors

Tonascia and Wright; President Shelton and Director Flores were absent.

c. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will be limited
to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda
With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Wright, the Agenda was
approved with 3 affirmative votes, Williams, Tonascia and Wright and there were 2
absences, Shelton and Flores.

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter not on the
Agenda
There were no public comments.

CONSENT AGENDA:

1. Approval of Minutes for: April 15,2024 Special Meeting

April 24,2024 Regular Meeting
2. Allowance of Claims
3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the May Board Meeting

4. On Call Contracts — Status Updates

Director Tonascia asked to pull agenda items #2 and #3 from the Consent Agenda for discussion.
With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Wright, the Consent Agenda
items, #1 and #4, were approved with 3 affirmative votes, Williams, Tonascia and Wright and
there were 2 absences, Shelton and Flores.
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Director Tonascia asked how much had been paid to Hollister Paint to date. Ms. Holland stated
the job is complete and Hollister Paint has been paid $23,750. She reviewed what work this
vendor has done for the District. She added, there were 3 quotes for painting. In regard to the
flooring, the District only had 1 quote because Lowe’s and Home Depot both measured but did
not provide a quote. Director Tonascia asked why this didn’t come to the Board for approval.
Ms. Holland stated she was told it was a budgeted item. Director Tonascia expressed concern
that while the individual vendor amounts were under $30,000, the overall project was over that
amount and should have had to have Board approval. Mr. Cattaneo stated, it sounds like
Director Tonascia is stating the budget is not an authorization to spend but the Board should still
have to approve amounts over $30,000. Director Tonascia cited how the District has purchased
vehicles in the past, which have gone before the Board.

Mr. Cattaneo suggested working with Ms. Holland and creating a policy for budgeted items to
get board approval and to keep the Board more informed. Mr. Liem offered to get language
together for this policy. Mr. Liem added it sounds like the project was split into pieces in order
to pass approval.

Director Wright asked if a recap of the total project could be prepared. Ms. Holland stated yes,
that could be done.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Wright, the Allowance of Claims
were approved with 3 affirmative votes, Williams, Tonascia and Wright and there were 2
absences, Shelton and Flores.

With a motion by Director Wright and a second by Director Tonascia, the Acknowledgement of
Paid Claims prior to the May Board Meeting were approved with 3 affirmative votes, Williams,
Tonascia and Wright and there were 2 absences, Shelton and Flores.

REGULAR AGENDA

S. Consider Approval of Antenna Repeater Lease Agreement between San Benito
County Water District (Lessor) and Sunnyslope County Water District (Lessee),
antenna to be located at the Lattice Tower at West Side of Administration Building
Mr. Cattaneo stated this agreement is a simple project which allows Sunnyslope County
Water District to put an antenna on our antenna tower so their district can remotely read
their meters. With no questions from the Board, a motion was made by Director Wright
and a second by Director Tonascia; the Board of Directors Approved the Antenna
Repeater Lease Agreement between San Benito County Water District (Lessor) and
Sunnyslope County Water District (Lessee), antenna to be located at the Lattice Tower at
West Side of Administration Building with 3 affirmative votes, Williams, Tonascia and
Wright and there were 2 absences, Shelton and Flores.

6. Consider Resolution Ordering District Election, Requesting Election Services and
Authorizing Payment Therefore
Mrs. Mauro reviewed this item for the Board. This action is required to be taken by the
Board every two years and is for either 2 or 3 divisions to be listed on the ballot. With no
questions from the Board, a motion was made by Director Tonascia and seconded by
Director Wright; the Board of Directors approved Resolution #2024-21, 4 Resolution of
the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District Ordering District
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10.

Election, Requesting Election Services and Authorizing Payment Therefore with 3
affirmative votes, Williams, Tonascia and Wright and there were 2 absences, Shelton and
Flores.

Consider Approval of Resolution approving the second amended and restated San
Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement and
Actions Related Thereto

Mr. Cattaneo stated Friant is currently not a member of the Authority, however; they are
paying operating and maintenance costs without having a voice on the Authority. This
action would amend the Joint Power Agreement to add Friant and would need a 14/28
vote to make this change. With a motion by Director Wright and a second by Director
Tonascia, the Board of Directors approved Resolution #2024-22, 4 Resolution of the
Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District approving the second
amended and restated San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority Joint Exercise of
Powers Agreement and Actions Related Thereto with 3 affirmative votes, Williams,
Tonascia and Wright and there were 2 absences, Shelton and Flores.

Consider Resolution Adopting a Salary Schedule Memorializing Existing Pay to
District Employees

Mr. Liem stated according to the California Code of Regulations 570.5, the Board needs
to adopt a salary schedule memorializing the existing pay to District employees. This
schedule includes the existing pay for staff as well as the General Manager classification
on April 15, 2024 and the approval of a new range for the General Manager on May 20,
2024. With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Wright; the Board
of Directors approved Resolution #2024-23, A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District Adopted a Salary Schedule Memorializing Existing
Pay to District Employees with 3 affirmative votes, Williams, Tonascia and Wright and
there were 2 absences, Shelton and Flores.

Committee/Agency Representative Reports:
a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Cattaneo)
As per Director Tonascia, Mr. Cattaneo can cover this under his manager’s report.

b. Finance Committee (Tonascia/Shelton)
As per Director Tonascia, the committee reviewed the 3™ quarter reporting.

c. Personnel Committee (Flores/Tonascia)
As per Mr. Cattaneo, the committee reviewed the travel policy, the jury duty
policy and the revision to the Personnel Policy; these items were all approved at
the Special Meeting on May 20™.

d. Zone 6 Water Supply & Operations Committee (Tonascia/Wright)
As per Director Wright, the committee discussed the allocation increase, the well
site acquisition for ADRoP and the current water supply.

Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

Mr. Craig reported the Department of Safety of Dams recently did inspections at both
Paicines and Hernandez Reservoirs. Also, his staff is working on clean-up at the
Hernandez Spillway. Mr. Craig also reported his staff turned the system around on June

3
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3. Mowing at San Justo Reservoir is complete, per Mr. Craig and mowing will need to
be done again at Paicines. He further reviewed the capital improvements he plans to do,
which is replacement of 17 lateral valves. Mr. Cattaneo added the District is considering
bundling them together in a bid to do all at one time.

General Manager’s Report:

a)

b)

d)

Reach 1 Operations

Mr. Cattaneo reported discussion is on-going about whether repair or replacement is
best for the pumps at the Pacheco Pumping Plant. Also discussed has been to
evaluation the condition assessment on the pumps on an annual basis. Mr. Cattaneo
reported the District is waiting on the Reach 1 Budget. Past years, the draft is
received in February with the final received in April. There is a meeting scheduled
for next week on the budget, so he is anticipating an update on this year’s budget.

Zone 3 Operations

Mr. Cattaneo reported he did a site visit last week to Hernandez. The first priority
would be to repair the road and adding some rock near the intake valve. The next
priority would be to draw down the reservoir, which he anticipates would take about
100 days. He then discussed about renting some pumps to get the remaining water
out, which he estimates could take about 15 days of pumping if the pumps were
running 24 hours a day. Mr. Cattaneo is hopeful to have it drained sufficiently by
early September.

Zone 6 Operations

Mr. Cattaneo reported the current AG allocation is 14,400 AF with a 15% loss, and
we have 11,000 AF committed at this time. He further reported there will not be any
carry over this year. In February, the District had the opportunity to fill San Justo
Reservoir, which was done. He further reported an opportunity was lost of carrying
over 4380 AF, which would have had a value of approximately $1.7-2 million. Mr.
Cattaneo also reported the District gave an initial allocation to AG of 35% of request,
which was 11,900 AF, which was in excess of what was available. If the District had
not received an additional allocation, it would have left a shortage of 7418 AF which
would have meant taking M & I water from San Justo or reducing the AG allocation.
Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

Mr. Cattaneo reported there are several items to report on for ADRoP. The
construction management proposals went back to bid and two responses were
received; MNS and Kennedy-Jenks. Interviews are scheduled for June 7* and Mr.
Cattaneo intends to award the contract either at a Special Meeting or at the June
Regular Meeting.

The bid for the Exploratory Boreholes is due June 3%, Mr. Cattaneo reported he
intends to award this contract at either a Special Meeting or at the June Regular
Meeting.

Mr. Cattaneo further reported that landowners on Fallon Road have been contacted
and most are open to participation. Director Wright asked how many well sites; Mr.
Cattaneo replied 5 sites.

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 29, 2024



€) San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities
Mr. Cattaneo reported the issue with Friant was covered earlier in the meeting.

Mr. Cattaneo then gave information on the B F Sisk Dam Negotiations. He reported
there are 3 types of water being considered: Project Water, Acquired Project Water
and Non-Project Water. Each type of water is protected differently. Non-Project
Water is most protected; Acquired Project Water is about in the middle; and Project
Water is the least protected. Mr. Cattaneo reported in a water critical year, the
Bureau can pull water back. The District would store Non-Project and Acquired
Project Water. Non-Project Water would be untouchable by the Bureau, per Mr.
Cattaneo.

Director Wright asked about payments from the District. Mr. Cattaneo stated there is
a cost for the consultants, so far, as everyone works through the negotiations.
Payments will likely start in August-September, about §1 million. Director Wright
asked if anyone has withdrawn; Mr. Cattaneo stated no, not yet. He further reported
Valley Water is the biggest contractor at 60% of the project. Richard Bettencourt, a
member of the audience, asked for some clarification of who the “Bureau” is and Mr.
Cattaneo provided that information.

f) City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan
Mr. Cattaneo reported staff is still working on this item. San Juan Bautista is getting
grant funding through the USDA. In order to obtain the grant, San Juan Bautista may
need to own their own pipeline, so the District will need to transfer ownership to
them. Staff estimates their cost for capacity to be approximately $1.8 million.

g) A.B. 2079 (Bennett), Groundwater extraction: large diameter, high-capacity
wells ,
Mr. Cattaneo reported Governor Newsom is working to have all new wells to have set
back requirements and now, the California Department of Water Resources has
expanded on this process. Their requirements are for all new wells, 8” or larger in
diameter, with a yield of 2 AF annually or more will be affected. Public water supply
wells and ASR wells will be exempt. Mr. Cattaneo feels this may cause a
moratorium on well drilling.

h) Update District Capacity Fees for new construction
Mr. Cattaneo reported there is a meeting scheduled next week with the District, the
City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District regarding the capacity fee
that was approved in the District’s Rate Study. These fees would fund projects such
as the B F Sisk Dam and are intended, through the Master Plan, for new construction.
This fee would be $12,250 for every new home but has not moved forward yet. Mr.
Cattaneo will focus on working with the City and Sunnyslope. Discussion ensued on
whether the District can go back to developers on current projects.

i) Miscellaneous District items
Mr. Cattaneo reported the annual budget usually comes to the Board in May or June.
Due to staffing issues, it may not be until the July meeting.
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12. Adjournment
With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:17 p.m.

Andrew Shelton, President

Barbara L. Mauro, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk
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System: 6/20/202< 3:31:06 P San Benito County Water District Page: 1
User Date: 6/20/202¢ COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER User ID: Leilani
Payables Management
Batch ID: CK062624 Audit Trail Code: PMCHK00001028
Batch Comment: Posting Date: 6/26/2024
Checkbook: UB-CKG
*Voided Checks
Check # Date Payment Number  Vendor ID Check Name Amount
0058671 6/26/2024 032493 A1JAN A-1 Services $524.00
0058672 6/26/2024 032494 ATOOL A Tool Shed $1,301.50
0058673 6/26/2024 032495 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc $438.00
0058674 6/26/2024 032496 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation $462.64
0058675 6/26/2024 032497 CCOIG C.C.0.l. Gate & Fence $361.79
0058676 6/26/2024 032498 CELLU Cellular Controlled Products $195.00
0058677 6/26/2024 032499 CINTA Cintas Corporation $509.80
0058678 6/26/2024 032500 CMANA CM Analytical Inc $7,460.00
0058679 6/26/2024 032501 DATAF Dataflow Business Systems Inc $355.73
0058680 6/26/2024 032502 DONCH Don Chapin Company Inc $214.89
0058681 6/26/2024 032503 EBCO EBCO Pest Control $66.00
0058682 6/26/2024 032504 ELCCO ELC Consulting $9,795.10
0058683 6/26/2024 032505 GUTIE Gutierrez Consuitants $14,107.50
0058684 6/26/2024 032506 HARRYBL Harry Blohm $2,937.50
0058685 6/26/2024 032507 HAUTO Hollister Auto Parts Inc $958.75
0058686 6/26/2024 032508 HOLLA Hollister Landscape Supply $95.48
0058687 6/26/2024 032509 HTRUE Hollister True Value Inc. $19.73
0058688 6/26/2024 032510 JOHNS Johnson Lumber Company $1,268.11
0058689 6/26/2024 032511 JOHNSM John Smith Landfill $884.16
0058690 6/26/2024 032512 LANDS Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridwell € $750.00
0058691 6/26/2024 032513 LIEBE Liebert Cassidy Whitmore $2,068.00
0058692 6/26/2024 032514 MCGIL McGilloway Ray Brown & Kaufman $6,875.00
0058693 6/26/2024 032515 MCKIN McKinnon Lumber Inc $285.57
0058694 6/26/2024 032516 MISSIO Mission Village Voice Media LLC $340.00
0058695 6/26/2024 032517 NCJUS North County Joint Union School District $98.40
0058696 6/26/2024 032518 NEWSV New SV Media Inc $1,561.20
0058697 6/26/2024 032519 PALAC Patace Business Solutions $376.91
0058698 6/26/2024 032520 PARCE ParcelQuest $5,998.00
0058699 6/26/2024 032521 PATDA Pat Davis Design Group Inc. $740.00
0058700 6/26/2024 032522 RESER Reserve Account $1,000.00
0058701 6/26/2024 032523 SBHIG San Benito High School $141.65
0058702 6/26/2024 032524 SENTR Sentry Alarm Systems $120.00
0058703 6/26/2024 032525 SHRED Shred-it $390.10
0058704 6/26/2024 032526 SIEMEN SIEMENS Industry inc. $6,082.57
0058705 6/26/2024 032527 SPURZ Spurzem & Liem LLP $2,650.00
0058706 6/26/2024 032528 SSCWD-TP Sunnyslope County Water District $384,484.36
0058707 6/26/2024 032529 TECHN TechnoFlo Systems $947.89
0058708 6/26/2024 032530 TODDE Todd Groundwater $1,411.75
0058709 6/26/2024 032531 TOROP Toro Petroleum Corporation $3,968.75
0058710 6/26/2024 032532 TURBO Turbo Time Welding $1,000.00
0058711 6/26/2024 032533 USBNK-CC US Bank Corporation $3,549.20
0058712 6/26/2024 032534 USBR-LA Bureau of Reclamation $971,075.77
0058713 6/26/2024 032535 WRIIN Wright Bros Industrial Supply $16.41
0058714 6/26/2024 032536 WRIWE Wright Bros Welding $56.83
0058715 6/26/2024 032537 ZEIAL Alan Zeisbrich $2,800.00
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System: 6/20/2024 3:31:0 San Benito County Water District
User ID: Leilani

User Date: 6/20/2024 COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

*Voided Checks

Check # Date Payment Number Vendor ID Check Name Amount

Total Checks: 45 Checks Total:  $1,440,745.04

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN BENITO

| DO HEREBY CERTIFY, UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY AT HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THIS 26 TH DAY OF JUNE 2024 THAT THE FOREGOING DEMANDS ENUMERATED HAVE

BEEN AUDITED; THAT THE SAME ARE ACCURATE AND JUST CLAIMS AGAINST THE DISTRICT;
AND THAT THERE ARE FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PAYMENT.

’Q-/ (AL [[(Nlatind /
Prepared by: Manpager-of-Admin-and-Finanee- mitted by: eral Manager
Accovntant

APPROVED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON:

A}

Date

President



San Benito County Water District 6/20/2024

Payment Fund Responsibility
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Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032493 6/20/2024 $524.00 AlJAN A-1 Services
" Voucher: 050300 Invoice: 4923 Date: 6/3/2024  Janitorial Services ~ DocAmt:  $52400
Allocations: $30.60 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $15.30 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $260.10 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $21.80 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $10.90 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $185.30 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $52.40 Fund 300: $26.20 Fund 600: $445.40
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032494 6/20/2024 $1,301.50 ATOOL A Tool Shed
Voucher: 050301 Invoice:  1695700-7 Date: 6/3/2024 Maintenance Equipment Rental  Doc Amt: $135.00
Allocations: $135.00 600-6450-0000-542 Tool & Equipment Rental-TM
Voucher: 050302 Invoice:  1693476-7 Date: 5/21/2024 Maintenance Equipment Rental  Doc Amt: $201.50
Allocations: $201.50 600-6450-0000-542 Tool & Equipment Rental-TM
Voucher: 050370 Invoice:  1696330-7 Date: 6/11/2024 Maintenance Equipment Rental  Doc Amt: $405.00
Allocations: $405.00 600-6450-0000-542 Tool & Equipment Rental-TM
Voucher: 050371 Invoice: 1696472-7 Date: 6/11/2024 Maintenance Equipment Rental  Doc Amt: $405.00
Allocations: $405.00 600-6450-0000-542 Tool & Equipment Rental-TM
Voucher: 050394 Invoice: 1697594-7 Date: 6/13/2024 Maintenance Equipment Rental  Doc Amt: $155.00
Allocations: $155.00 600-6450-0000-542 Tool & Equipment Rental-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $1,301.50
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032495 6/20/2024 §438.00 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc
Voucher: 050303 Invoice: 50302 Date: 6/1/2024 On-Screen Ad Doc Amt: $438.00
Allocations: $438.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$438.00
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Payment# Date Check Total ~ Vendor ID Vendor Name
032496 6/20/2024 $462.64 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation
Voucher: 050372 Invoice: 220000073986 Date: 6/10/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $304.59
Allocations: $304.59 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Voucher: 050373 Invoice: 220000072076 Date: 5/23/2024 District Supplies Doc Amt: $7946
i Allocations: $79.467600-6320-0000-542"" " "Supplies-TM ) B
Voucher: 050374 Invoice: 220000074189 Date: 6/11/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $78.59
Allocations: $78.59 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $462.64
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Yendor ID Vendor Name
032497 6/20/2024 $361.79 CCOIG C.C.0.1. Gate & Fence
Voucher: 050304 Invoice: 3652133294 Date: 5/28/2024 Maintenance SJIR Gate Doc Amt: $180.00
Allocations: $180.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Voucher: 050305 Invoice: 36352133425 Date: 5/31/2024 Maintenance SJR Gate Doc Amt: $181.79
Allocations: $181.79 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $361.79
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032498 6/20/2024 $195.00 CELLU Cellular Controlled Products
Voucher: 050306 Invoice: 0082203-IN Date: 6/1/2024  Quarterly Service Doc Amt: $195.00
Allocations: $195.00 600-6270-0000-541 CS-Operations-TO
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $195.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Yendor ID Vendor Name
032499 6/20/2024 $509.80 CINTA Cintas Corporation
Voucher: 050307 Invoice: 4194769749 Date: 6/4/2024 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $12745
Allocations: $12.75 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $6.37 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $108.33 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 050308 Invoice: 4194128127 Date: 5/29/2024 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $127.45
Allocations: $12.75 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $6.37 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $108.33 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 050375 Invoice: 4195494247 Date: 6/11/2024 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $12745
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Allocations: $12.75 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $6.37 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $108.33 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85

Voucher;: 050399 Invoice: 4196204283 Date: 6/18/2024 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $12745
Allocations: $12.75 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations;~— $6:37--300:6275=0000-563-06" - CS-Maint 10/5/85~ I
Allocations: $108.33 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $50.98 Fund 300: $25.49 Fund 600: $433.33
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032500 6/20/2024 $7,460.00 CMANA CM Analytical Inc
Voucher: 050404 Invoice: 82559 Date: 6/11/2024 Water Quality Testing Doc Amt:  $7,460.00
Allocations: $970.00 600-6270-0604-541 CS Operations Recycled Water Project
Allocations: $2,400.00 700-6270-0135-511 CS-Ops-Water Quality Groundwater-SSO
Allocations: $2,835.00 600-6270-0135-511 CS Ops-Water Quality Grwtr-SSO
Allocations: $315.00 300-6270-0135-511 CS-Ops-Water Quality Groundwater-SSO
Allocations: $940.00 600-6270-0000-541 CS-Operations-TO

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $315.00 Fund 600: $4,745.00
Fund 700: $2,400.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032501 6/20/2024 §$355.73 DATAF Dataflow Business Systems Inc
Voucher: 050376 Invoice: 392475 Date: 6/7/2024  Copier Lease Doc Amt: $355.13
Allocations: $16.80 100-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $8.40 300-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $142.77 600-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $18.78 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $9.39 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $159.60 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $35.57 Fund 300: $17.79 Fund 600: $302.37
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032502 6/20/2024 $214.89 DONCH Don Chapin Company Inc
Voucher: 050409 Invoice: 185225 Date: 6/5/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $21489

Allocations: $214.89 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks



Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00

Fund 600: $214.89
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Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032503  6/20/2024 $66.00 EBCO EBCO Pest Control
Voucher: 050314 Invoice: 21852 Date: 6/1/2024 Monthly Pest Control Doc Amt: $66.00
Allocations: $6.60 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $3.30 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $56.10 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $6.60 Fund 300: $3.30 Fund 600: $56.10
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032504 6/20/2024 §9,795.10 ELCCO ELC Consulting
Voucher: 050309 Invoice: 9555 Date: 6/1/2024 Monthly Service Agreement DocAmt:  $6,897.00
Allocations: $659.70 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $329.85 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $5,607.45 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $300.00 600-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Voucher: 050310 Invoice: 9556 Date: 6/1/2024 Monthly Service Agreement DocAmt:  §$1,480.00
Allocations: $690.00 600-6260-0602-531 CS Computer - Lessalt WTP
Allocations: $790.00 600-6260-0603-531 CS Computer - West Hills WTP
Voucher: 050311 Invoice: 9580 Date: 5/30/2024 Monthly Service Agreement Doc Amt: $240.35
Allocations: $24.04 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $12.02 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $204.30 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Voucher: 050312 Invoice: 9585 Date: 5/1/2024 Monthly Service Agreement DocAmt:  $1,077.75
Allocations: $107.78 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $53.89 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $916.09 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Voucher: 050313 Invoice: 9557 Date: 6/1/2024 Monthly Service Agreement Doc Amt: $100.00
Allocations: $100.00 803-6260-0000-563 CS - Computers
Payment Responsibilities:
“und 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $791.51 Fund 300: $395.76 Fund 600: $8,507.84
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$100.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032505 6/20/2024 $14,107.50 GUTIE Gutierrez Consultants
Voucher: 050377 Invoice: 1879 Date: 6/13/2024 Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $8,167.50
Allocations: $8,167.50 600-1351-0129-151 Future Water Supply- Alternatives
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Voucher: 050378 Invoice: 1880 Date: 6/13/2024 Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $1,620.00
Allocations: $1,620.00 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP
Voucher: 050393 Invoice: 1878 Date: 6/13/2024 Consulting Services DocAmt:  $4,320.00
Allocations: $4,320.00 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $14,107.50
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total  Vendor ID Vendor Name
032506 6/20/2024 $2,937.50 HARRYBL  Harry Blohm
Voucher: 050384 Invoice: 060324 Date: 6/3/2024 Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $2,937.50
Allocations: $2,937.50 600-6240-0603-563 CS General Consulting- GA - West Hills WTP
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $2,937.50
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:5$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total  Vendor ID Vendor Name
032507 6/20/2024 $958.75 HAUTO Hollister Auto Parts Inc
Voucher: 050315 Invoice: 970913 Date: 5/31/2024 Engineering Supplies Doc Amt: $927.08
Allocations: $927.08 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Voucher: 050316 Invoice: CM970971 Date: 5/31/2024 Engineering Supplies Doc Amt: -$19.67
Allocations: -$19.67 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Voucher: 050317 Invoice: CM971140 Date: 6/3/2024  Engineering Supplies Doc Amt: -$39.33
Allocations: -$39.33  600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Voucher: 050379 Invoice: 972108 Date: 6/11/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $90.67
Allocations: $90.67 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $958.75
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032508 6/20/2024 $95.48 HOLLA Hollister Landscape Supply
Voucher: 050407 Invoice: 79533 Date: 6/13/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $95.48
Allocations: $95.48 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Payment Responsibilities:
“‘und 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00
Fund 803:$0.00

Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $95.48
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Payment Responsibilities:
‘und 000: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00

Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:330.56
Payment# Date Check Total  Vendor ID Vendor Name
032511 6/20/2024 $884.16 JOHNSM John Smith Landfill

Fund 600: $1,237.55

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032509 6/20/2024 §19.73 HTRUE Hollister True Value Inc.
Voucher: 050395 Invoice: A427769 Date: 6/13/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $19.73
Allocations: $19.73  600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
__ Payment Responsibilities: -
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $19.73
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032510 6/20/2024 $1,268.11 JOHNS Johnson Lumber Company
Voucher: 050318 Invoice: 274687 Date: 5/28/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $209.67
Allocations: $209.67 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA
Voucher: 050319 Invoice: 274768 Date: 5/30/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $41.49
Allocations: $41.49 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 050320 Invoice: 274854 Date: 6/3/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $343.02
Allocations: $343.02 600-6330-0000-542 Tools Purchase-TM
Voucher: 050321 Invoice: 274850 Date: 6/3/2024  District Supplies Doc Amt: $178.00
Allocations: $178.00 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA
Voucher: 050322 Invoice: 274849 Date: 6/3/2024 WRA Supplies Doc Amt: $30.56
Allocations: $30.56 803-6320-0000-562 Supplies (PI)
Voucher: 050323 Invoice: 274526 Date: 5/21/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $276.57
Allocations: $276.57 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 050380 Invoice: 275029 Date: 6/10/2024 Engineering Supplies Doc Amt: $111.24
Allocations: $111.24 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Voucher: 050381 Invoice: CM275042 Date: 6/10/2024 Engineering Supplies Doc Amt; -$29.01
Allocations: -$29.01 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Voucher: 050382 Invoice: 274976 Date: 6/7/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $45.87
Allocations: $45.87 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 050383 Invoice: 275099 Date: 6/12/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $60.70
Allocations: $60.70 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA
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Voucher: 050324 Invoice: 01-01042925 Date: 5/28/2024 Dump Fee Doc Amt: $306.83
Allocations: $306.83 600-6860-0000-542 Utilities-Disposal fees
Voucher: 050325 Invoice: 01-01040628 Date: 5/15/2024 Dump Fee Doc Amt: $286.47
Allocations: $286.47 600-6860-0000-542 Utilities-Disposal fees
Voucher: 050326 Invoice:  01-01042111 Date: 5/24/2024 Dump Fee Doc Amt: $290.86
Allocations:, $290.86 600-6860-0000-542 Utilities-Disposal fees
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $884.16
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032512 6/20/2024 $750.00 LANDS Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridw
Voucher: 050327 Invoice: 052324 Date: 5/23/2024 Landscape Plan Review Doc Amt: $750.00 .
Allocations: $750.00 803-6240-0000-563 CS - General Consulting (Plan Cks/Rev)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$750.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032513 6/20/2024 §2,068.00 LIEBE Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Prof Law (
Voucher: 050328 Invoice: 267434 Date: 4/30/2024 Legal Services DocAmt:  $2,068.00
Allocations: $206.80 100-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $103.40 300-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $1,757.80 600-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $206.80 Fund 300: $103.40 Fund 600: $1,757.80
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032514 6/20/2024 $6,875.00 MCGIL McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman
Voucher: 050329 Invoice: 2000045269 Date: 4/30/2024 Accounting Services DocAmt:  $6,875.00
Allocations: $687.50 100-6230-0000-563-06  CS-Accounting 10/5/85
Allocations: $343.75 300-6230-0000-563-06  CS-Accounting 10/5/85
Allocations: $5,843.75 600-6230-0000-563-06  CS-Accounting 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $687.50 Fund 300: $343.75 Fund 600: $5,843.75
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032515 6/20/2024 5285.57 MCKIN McKinnon Lumber, Inc.
Voucher: 050330 Invoice: 779340 Date: 6/3/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $113.07

Allocations: $113.07 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
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Voucher: 050385 Invoice: 779849 Date: 6/10/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $5943
Allocations: $59.43 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 050386 Invoice: 779444 Date: 6/14/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $113.07
Allocations: $113.07 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $285.57
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032516 6/20/2024 $340.00 MISSIO Mission Village Voice Media LLC
Voucher: 050387 Invoice: 1164 Date: 6/4/2024 Monthly Print Ad Doc Amt: $340.00
Allocations: $340.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI) ’
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$340.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
032517 6/20/2024 $99.40 NCJUS North County Joint Union School Dist
Voucher: 050331 Invoice: 240081 Date: 5/22/2024 WRA Field Trip Transportation ~ Doc Amt: $99.40
Allocations: $99.40 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (EDU)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:899.40
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
032518 6/20/2024 $1,561.20 NEWSV New SV Media, Inc
Voucher: 050332 Invoice: 113070 Date: 5/31/2024 05/31/24 Weekly Print Ad Doc Amt: $160.00
Allocations: $160.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Voucher: 050333 Invoice: 112556 Date: 5/24/2024 05/24/24 Weekly Print Ad Doc Amt: $160.00
Allocations: $160.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Voucher: 050334 Invoice: 111398 Date: 5/13/2024 5/17/24, 5/24/24 Public Notice = Doc Amt: $311.20
Allocations: $311.20 600-1351-A129-151 ADRoP-Accelerated Drought Response Project
Voucher: 050401 Invoice: 114478 Date: 6/14/2024 06/14/24 Weekly Print Ad Doc Amt: $160.00
Allocations: $160.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (P)
Voucher: 050403 Invoice: 113965 Date: 6/7/2024 Weekly Print Ad/Monthly Web Ad Doc Amt: $770.00
Allocations: $160.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Allocations: $160.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (P1)

Allocations: $225.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)



Allocations: $225.00

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00
Fund 803:31,250.00

803-6865-0000-562

Fund 300: $0.00

Advertising/Public Info (PI)

Fund 600: $311.20
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Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032519 6/20/2024 $376.91 PALAC Palace Business Solutions
Voucher: 050335 Invoice: 2348394-0 Date: 5/31/2024 Office Supplies $376.91
Allocations: $320.37 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $18.85 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $37.69 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000; $0.00 Fund 100: $37.69 Fund 300: $18.85 Fund 600: $320.37
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032520 6/20/2024 $5,998.00 PARCE ParcelQuest
Voucher: 050392 Invoice:  7968-6-2024 Date: 6/6/2024 Annual Access Fee $5,998.00
Allocations: $1,799.40 700-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $2,699.10 600-6260-0000-551 CS-Computer-CA
Allocations: $1,199.60 600-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $299.90 300-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $299.90 Fund 600: $3,898.70
Fund 700: $1,799.40 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032521 6/20/2024 $740.00 PATDA Pat Davis Design Group, Inc.
Voucher: 050388 Invoice: 7844 Date: 6/7/2024 Website Maintenance $740.00
Allocations: $55.00 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $27.50 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $467.50 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $19.00 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $9.50 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $161.50 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $74.00 Fund 300: $37.00 Fund 600: $629.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032522 6/20/2024 $1,000.00 RESER Reserve Account
Voucher: 050336 Invoice: 053024 Date: 5/30/2024 Postage On Account $1,000.00

Allocations: $970.00

600-6825-0000-562-06

Postage 2/1/97
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Allocations: $20.00 100-6825-0000-562-06  Postage 2/1/97
Allocations: $10.00 300-6825-0000-562-06  Postage 2/1/97

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $20.00 Fund 300: $10.00 Fund 600: $970.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032523 6/20/2024 $141.65 SBHIG San Benito High School District
Voucher: 050389 Invoice: 240420 Date: 5/16/2024 WRA Field Trip Transportation =~ Doc Amt: $141.65
Allocations: $141.65 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (EDU)

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:3141.65
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032524 6/20/2024 $120.00 SENTR Sentry Alarm Systems
Voucher: 050391 Invoice: 2252960 Date: 6/15/2024 Quarterly Monitoring Doc Amt: $120.00
Allocations: $12.00 100-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $6.00 300-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $102.00 600-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $12.00 Fund 300: $6.00 Fund 600: $102.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:5$0.00
Payment# . Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032525 6/20/2024 $390.10 SHRED Shred-it
Voucher: 050400 Invoice: 8007306235 Date: 5/31/2024 Monthly Shredding Service Doc Amt: $390.10
Allocations: $39.01 100-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: ™ $19.51 300-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $331.59 600-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $39.01 Fund 300: $19.51 Fund 600: $331.59
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032526 6/20/2024 $6,082.57 SIEMEN SIEMENS Industry, Inc.
Voucher: 050337 Invoice: 5609621721 Date: 6/3/2024  Electrical Supplies Doc Amt;  $6,082.57
Allocations: $6,082.57 600-1436-0000-110 TDS Meter & Meter Installations

Payment Respoasibilities:

“und 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $6,082.57
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name

032527 6/20/2024 $2,650.00 SPURZ Spurzem & Liem LLP
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Voucher: 050338 Invoice: 62534 Date: 6/3/2024  Legal Services DocAmt:  $2,650.00
Allocations: $212.00 100-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $106.00 300-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Aliocations: $1,802.00 600-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $530.00 600-6210-0000-563 CS-Legal-GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $212.00 Fund 300: $106.00 Fund 600: $2,332.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032528 6/20/2024 $384,484.36 SSCWD-TP  Sunnyslope County Water District
Voucher: 050397 Invoice: INVO00173 Date: 5/31/2024 Plant Operations- Lessalt Doc Amt: $129,690.96
Allocations: $129,690.96 600-6270-0602-531 CS Operations - Lessalt WTP
Voucher: 050398 Invoice: INV00174 Date: 5/31/2024 Plant Operations- West Hills Doc Amt: $254,793.40
Allocations: $254,793.40 600-6270-0603-531 CS Operations - West Hills WTP

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $384,484.36
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032529 6/20/2024 $947.89 TECHN TechnoFlo Systems
Voucher: 050408 Invoice: 45666 Date: 6/18/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $947.89
Allocations: $947.89 600-6337-0918-551 Meters-Downsizing parts/repair supply

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $947.89
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032530 6/20/2024 $1,411.75 TODDE Todd Groundwater
Voucher: 050396 Invoice: 37653 624 Date: 6/8/2024 Engineering Services DocAmt:  $1,41L75
Allocations: $1,411.75 700-6240-0160-511 CS-Annual Grwtr Report-SSO

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700; $1,411.75 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Yendor Name
032531 6/20/2024 $3,968.75 TOROP Toro Petroleum Corporation
Voucher: 050339 Invoice: CL75509 Date: 5/31/2024 Vehicle Fuel Doc Amt:  $3,968.75
Allocations: $9.57 100-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
Allocations: $55.04 300-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA

Allocations: $3,758.06 600-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA



Allocations:

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00

$146.08

Fund 100: $9.57

803-6465-0000-562

Fund 300: $55.04

Vehicle Fuel

Fund 600: $3,758.06
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Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$146.08
Payment# Date Check Total ~ Vendor ID Vendor Name
032532 6/20/2024 $1,000.00 TURBO Turbo Time Welding
Voucher: 050390 Invoice: 26 Date: 6/7/2024 Welding Services DocAmt:  $1,000.00
Allocations: $1,000.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $1,000.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032533 6/20/2024 $3,549.20 USBNK-CC  U.S. Bank Corporation
Voucher: 050340 Invoice: 052224BM Date: 5/22/2024 Monthly Statement Doc Amt:  $2,133.89
Allocations: $4.30 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $2.15 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $36.54 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $74.30 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $4.37 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $8.74 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.42 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $0.21 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $3.53 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $28.60 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.68 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $3.37 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $595.13  600-6850-0000-562 Travel and Mileage
Allocations: $14.90 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.88 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.75 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $52.00 600-1351-A129-151 ADRoP-Accelerated Drought Response Project
Allocations: $26.63 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.57 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $3.13 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $16.09 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.95 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.89 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $18.64 600-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $2.19 100-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $1.10 300-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $22.08 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.30 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA



Allocations:

$2.60

100-6835-0000-562-06

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85

Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Allocations: $383.81 600-6330-0000-562 Tools Purchase-GA
Allocations: $33.61 100-6440-0000-562-06  Office Fum/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Allocations: $16.80 300-6440-0000-562-06  Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Allocations: $285.65 600-6440-0000-562-06
Allocations: $54.36 600-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $6.40 100-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $3.20 300-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $19.48 100-6440-0000-562-06  Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Allocations: $9.74 300-6440-0000-562-06  Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Allocations: $165.61 600-6440-0000-562-06
Allocations: $93.94 600-6845-0000-562 General Business Expense GA
Allocations: $101.85 600-6845-0000-562 General Business Expense GA
Allocations: $24.16 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.42 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $2.84 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Voucher: 050341 Invoice: 052224MH Date: 5/22/2024 Monthly Statement
Allocations: $0.95 100-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $0.47 300-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $8.07 600-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $1.05 100-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $0.52 300-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $8.90 600-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $2.76 100-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Aliocations: $1.38 300-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $23.48 600-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Allocations: $175.00 600-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info
Allocations: $175.00 600-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info

Voucher: 050342 Invoice: 052224MC Date: 5/22/2024 Monthly Statement
Allocations: $108.50 600-6195-0000-565 Training
Allocations: $241.50 600-6195-0000-565 Training
Allocations: $168.24 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Allocations: $499.49 600-6460-0000-562 Vehicle Maintenance-GA
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$397.38

$1,017.13
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Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 300: $47.73 Fund 600: $3,406.00

Fund 100: $95.48

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032534 6/20/2024 $971,075.77 USBR-LA Bureau of Reclamation
Voucher: 050402 Invoice: 1804112134 Date: 6/5/2024 Semi-Annual 8-07-20-WO0130A  Doc Amt: $971,075.77
Allocations: $944,145.19 600-1501-0207-125 Water Rights - CVP Amendatory Contract Repmt
Allocations: $26,930.58 600-9501-0207-592 CVP Amendatory Contract Rpmt Interest

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 600: $971,075.77

Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032535 6/20/2024 $16.41 WRIIN Wright Bros Industrial Supply
Voucher: 050344 Invoice: 284252 Date: 5/21/2024 Welding Supplies Doc Amt: $16.41
Allocations: $16.41 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $16.41
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032536 6/20/2024 $56.83 WRIWE Wright Bros Welding
Voucher: 050343 Invoice: 56190 Date: 6/4/2024  Welding Services Doc Amt: $56.83
Allocations: $56.83 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $56.83
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
032537 6/20/2024 $2,800.00 ZEIAL Alan Zeisbrich
Voucher: 050345 Invoice: 5-2024 Date: 6/3/2024 Contract Services DocAmt:  $2,275.00
Allocations: $137.50 300-6270-0000-511 CS-Operations-SSO
Allocations: $1,237.50 600-6270-0000-541 CS-Operations-TO
Allocations: $450.00 600-6270-0602-531 CS Operations ~ Lessalt WTP
Allocations: $450.00 600-6270-0603-531 CS Operations - West Hills WTP
Voucher: 050346 Invoice: 5-2024P Date: 6/3/2024 Contract Services Doc Amt: $525.00
Allocations: $115.50 600-1503-0158-125 Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project
Allocations: $409.50 600-1503-0158-125 Reach | Capital Improvement Project
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Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 , Fund 300: $137.50 Fund 600: $2,662.50

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00

Report Totals, Payment Fund Responsiblities

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 106: $2,331.11 Fﬁnd 300: $1,968.20 Fund 600: $1,427,538.89

Fund 700:85,611.15 Fund 803:53,295.69

Fund 100 = District Administration
Fund 300 = Zone 3

Fund 600 = Zone 6

Fund 700 = Zone GSA

Fund 803 = Zone WRA

0-x
2933111+
12968-20+

V2427538594
5561115+
2529559

T2t 0:78E8Chx



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: 2)
Meeting Date: June 26, 2024
Submitted By: Leilani Vidal

Presented By: Jeff Cattaneo

Agenda Title: Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the June 2024 Board Meeting

Detailed Description: This is a notification that the check & wire transfers listed below were
issued outside the normal claims process.

Payee Check Amount For Issued Date
No.
California Dept. of
Fish and Game 58646 $31,671.75 Incidental Intake Fee 06/03/24
Filing Fee -Notice of
San Benito County 58648 $145.00 | Completion 6/11/24
Clerk Filing Fee -Notice of
Exemption
All Industrial
Electric 58652 $12,881.5 | GA800 200HP 480V AC Drive 6/12/24
Santa Clara Valley 58667 $76,086.66 | Jan-Mar 24 O&M Charges 6/12/24
Water District

Wire Transfers

. . O&M delivery costs
ij‘“ I&“is f;}ie“a' TW“§ $88,985.00 | (June 2024 advanced water 6/12/24
endota ranster delivery payment form)
USBR (pay.gov) Wire | ¢40.686.02 | Water Payment 6/14/24
' Transfer e
Financial Impact: X Yes No




Funding Source/ Recap:

Fiscal Year Budget as approved

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Copy of Wire Transfer Request

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review

Board Action

Resolution No._ Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
30 MANSFIELD RD, HOLLISTER, CA 95023

Vendor Account
CAFISH California Dept of Fish & Game
Invoice Date Description
060324 6/3/2024 2024 Incidental Take Permit

2024 Incidental Take Permit

Date
6/3/2024

0058646

058646

Net Amt.
$31,671.75

$31,671.75



MEMORANDUM

TO: Megan Holland or Jeff Cattaneo
FROM: David Macdonald
DATE: 05/30/2024

Subject: Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address Amount of Request | Disposition Method:

(for remittance)

Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Regular Mail

California Department of Fish | $31,671.75

and Wildlife
1234 E. Shaw Avenue
Fresno, CA 93710

Return to requestor

Expense 600-1351-A129-151-02
Account
number(s)

Reason for Incidental Take Permit Fee
Request:

Supporting documentation for this request:

X | Is attached

Will be returned to Accounting
upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Appro by:

M 71 Holland or Jeff Cattaneo

L e

Date




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
30 MANSFIELD RD, HOLLISTER, CA 95023

Vendor Account
SBCCLERK San Benito County Clerk
Invoice Date Description
061124 6/11/2024 Notice of Exemption Fee
0611244 6/11/2024 Notice of Completion

Notice of Completion

058648

Date
6/11/2024 0058648
Net Amt.
$50.00
$95.00

$145.00



MEMORANDUM
TO: Jeff Cattaneo or Megan Holland
FROM: David Macdonald
DATE: 06/11/2024

Subject: Manual Check Request

DUV

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address Amount of Request | Disposition Method:

(for remittance) Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Regular Mail

County Clerk -County of San $50.00 Return to Requestor

Benito

440 5th Street, 2nd Floor, Room

206

Hollister, CA 95023

Expense 600-1351-A129-151-02

Account

number(s)

Reason for | Notice of exemption fee for the county.

Request:

Supporting documentation for this request:

X | Is attached

Will be returned to Accounting
upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Ap%:y%

L /ﬂ}‘

Jeff Cattaneo or Megan Holland Date




MEMORANDUM
TO: Jeff Cattaneo or Megan Holland
FROM: David Macdonald
DATE: 06/11/2024

Subject: Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address
(for remittance)

Amount of Request

Disposition Method:
Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Regular Mail

County Clerk -County of San
Benito

440 5th Street, 214 Floor, Room
206

Hollister, CA 95023

$95.00

Return to Requestor

Expense 600-6275-0939-542-02

Account
number(s)

Reason for | Notice of completion fee for the county.

Request:

Supporting documentation for this request:

X | Is attached

Will be returned to Accounting
upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Approzed bW

G2y

Jefif @attaneo or Megan Holland Date




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
30 MANSFIELD RD, HOLLISTER, CA 95023

Vendor Account
ALLIN All Industrial Electric Supply
Invoice Date Description
5305431 3/15/2024 . Electrical Supplies

Electrical Supplies

Date
6/12/2024

0058652

058652

Net Amt.
$12,881.75

$12,881.75



MEMORANDUM

TO: Megan Holland or Jeff Cattaneo
FROM: Leilani Vidal
DATE: June 12, 2024

Subject: Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address
{for remittance)

Amount of Request

Disposition Method:
Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Reqgular Mail

All Industrial Electric $12,881.75 Pay/mail with 6/12/24
urgent payables

Expense 600-6321-0000-522-02

Account

number(s)

Reason for | Received statement from All Industrial Electric and noticed we
Request: hadn’t received an invoice listed. Made 4 attempts to request

invoice, finally received 05/29/24 (invoice dated 03/15/24).
Paying with urgent payables to avoid late fees.

Supporting documentation for this request:

x | Is attached

Will be returned to Accounting
upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Approved M
Y.

682

Méga/n Holland or Jeff Cattaneo Date




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
30 MANSHECDHD, HOLLISTER, CA 95023

Vendor Account
SCVWD Santa Clara Valley Water Dist 9724
Invoice Date Description
GN102970 5/20/2024 Jan - Mar 24 O&M Charge

Jan - Mar 24 O&M Charge

Date
6/12/2024

0058667

058667

Net Amt.
$76,086.66

$76,086.66
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Fiscal Year 2024 On-Call Contract Activity Report
Todd Groundwater - *Groundwater Management & Evaluation
Board Meeting 6/26/24

For task orders issued 11/4/22 to 11/3/23 (Year 1 of 3)

**Annual NTE

Task Order Task Order Contract Amount Task Order L Task Order Payments to
Contract L. Task Order Description
Status Amount Remaining Number Issued Date Date
Amount
$ 250,000 By : :
Open S 50,000 | $ 200,000 1 Well design & siting {last phase of current grant} 12.05.22 S 42,095.83
Closed S 75,000 | $ 125,000 2 Grant Application Support-DWR & USBR 12.20.22 S 68,177.50
Closed S 20,000 § $ 105,000 2A Grant Application Support-DWR & USBR 05.22.23 S 14,197.50
Closed $ 10,000 | $ 95,000 3 IRWM Grant Application Support 02.21.23 $ 4,047.50
Open S 35,000 | $ 60,000 4 USBR Grant Application Support 10.26.23 $ 26,435.00
$ 250,000 $ 190,000 | $ 60,000 $ 154,953.33

*SBCWD Board approved 10.26.22, Contract #TODDGW-2022 OC

**1-year term expires 11.3.23, with option of 2 additional years (total of 3 years NTE $750,000)




Fiscal Year 2024 On-Call Contract Activity Report
MCC Controls dba Primex - *Water Treatment Plants Maintenance Agreement {SCADA Services)
Board Meeting 6/26/24

NOTE: NO ADDITIONAL TASK ORDERS WERE EXECUTED AS OF THIS MEETING'S REPORTING DEADLINE

**NTE Contract Task Order Contract Amount Task Order .. Task Order Issued Payments to
Task Order Status L. Task Order Description
Amount Amount Remaining Number Date Date

$ 400,000 i
Open S 30,000 S 370,000 1 Control System Services/Maintenance 12.06.22 $ 2,846.00
Closed S 130,665 | $§ 239,335 2 RTU Hardware for RTU-8,-9,-10,-11,-14,-20 12.06.22 $ 130,664.52
Closed S 48,3001 S 191,035 3 RTU - 10 PLC Programming/Installation 01.09.23 3 48,300.00
Closed $ 46,492 ] $ 144,543 4 RTU - 11 PLC Programming/Installation 01.09.23 $ 46,492.00
Closed S 55,814 1§ 88,729 5 RTU - 8 PLC and Device Upgrades 05.24.23 $ 55,814.00
Open $ 48,248 | S 40,481 6 RTU - 14 PLC Programming/Installation 04.15.24 $ -

$ 400,000 $ 359,519 | $ 40,481 $ 284,116.52

*SBCWD Board approved 9.21.22, Contract #PRIMEX-2022 OC

**Contract expires 9.19.25
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San Benito County Water District

f;:;(:l 7‘3&7&{;@, 30 Mansfield Road * P.0O. Box 899 * Hollister, CA 95024-0899 » (831) 637-8218 * Fax (831) 637-7267

June 26, 2024

Members of the Board of Directors
San Benito County Water District

We are pleased to present the San Benito County Water District’s (District) Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the year ended June 30, 2023.

The report was prepared by the District in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
District. We believe that the data, as presented is accurate in all material respects and that it is
presented in a manner designated to set forth fairly the financial position and results of operations
of the District. Included are all the disclosures we believe are necessary to enhance understanding
of the financial condition of the District.

McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman, Accountants and Consultants, have issued an unmodified
(“clean”) opinion on the San Benito County Water District’s financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2023. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section
of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial
statements. As a complimentary document, the MD&A should be read in conjunction with this
letter of transmittal.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND PROGRAMS

Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan

During this past year the District and San Juan Bautista continued work through the Memorandum
of Understanding signed in FY2022-2023 to evaluate the possibility of adding San Juan Bautista
to what was the Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan, and will now be referred
to as the Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan. The intent of adding San Juan Bautista
to the urban area planning effort is to investigate options to connect San Juan Bautista to the West
Hills water treatment plant.

A contract was issued in FY22-23 to HDR Inc to prepare a Basis of Design Report (BOD) that
would be the preliminary design for a connection to the West Hills Treatment Plant and a pipeline
to convey water through San Juan Valley to San Juan Bautista. HDR has completed the BOD with
the estimated cost of construction at $7,691,000.

Also, still under consideration is San Juan Bautista’s buy-in to the West Hills/Lessalt treatment
capacity. Under an amendment to the original Water Supply and Treatment agreement between




the District, City of Hollister (COH), and Sunnyslope County Water District (SSCWD), San Juan
Bautista (SJB) would be added as a 5% partner.

The District began exploring opportunities for grant funding to pay for some or all of the
recommended near term projects identified in the plan. Grant applications were submitted for three
grants in fall of 2022 and the District was awarded the DWR Integrated Regional Water
Management Plan and Sustainable Groundwater Management grant for $11.5 million, and USBR’s
Small Storage Grant for $6.7 million both of which will be utilized in FY 24-25 and beyond to
complete this project. The grants received will provide partial funding for the first phase of the
recommended Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project. The update of San Benito Urban Area Water
Supply and Treatment Master Plan has been updated to reflect the grant opportunities and was
completed in March 2023.

Recycled Water Storage Facilities

The District continues to refine the operations and add new customers to the recycled water project.
The completion of the storage facilities allows for 1,000 acre-feet of recycled water per year to be
delivered, and nearly 100% of the recycled water produced between April — September of each
year is available for use. The use of recycled water for agricultural purposes is particularly
important in years of drought as imported water supply is limited.

Zebra Mussels

Infestation of Zebra Mussels within San Justo Reservoir has been documented since February
2008. Since then, the District, United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), and California
Department of Fish and Game (DFG) have been working to develop an eradication plan to
eliminate the mussels from the reservoir.

One of the key concerns with any water source with mussel infestation is that the mussels will
eventually migrate to the conveyance systems (i.e. the Hollister Conduit, or San Felipe Distribution
System). In March of 2009 zebra mussel infestation was confirmed in the Hollister Conduit.

The District continues to operate San Justo Reservoir (San Justo) as it has for the past 15 years
seasonally raising and lowering water levels in San Justo to minimize Zebra Mussel populations
taking advantage of the hypoxic water that develops in the reservoir each summer to help control
the zebra mussel populations in the reservoir and distribution system. To date, visual inspections
indicate that this has been effective. The District will continue to manage with operational
modifications.

At this time there is no indication of when USBR will complete an eradication plan.

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project

The District was a participant in a Proposition 1 grant application with Santa Clara Valley Water
District (SCVWD) and Pacheco Pass Water District (PPWD) for the expansion of the Pacheco
Reservoir. In July of 2018, Department of Water Resource (DWR) announced the project would
receive the full funding request of $485 million. The total project cost is currently estimated to be
approximately $2.5 billion.

The project includes construction of a new earthen dam a short distance upstream from the existing
dam and a pipeline to connect the dam to the existing Pacheco Conduit, a federal Central Valley
Project pipeline that delivers water into Santa Clara and San Benito counties from the San Luis
Reservoir. The Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project would expand the reservoir from 6,000 to
140,000 acre-feet and deliver water supply, water quality, and ecosystem benefits to the region.
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In June 2018, the Board approved a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with SCVWD that
outlines the terms for moving forward with the project. Originally the MOA included 2 major
agreements that needed to be completed within 2 years of the signing of the agreement, an
allocation of benefits agreement and a provisional operating agreement. In addition, the MOA
called for the District within the 2 years to determine its participation level ranging from 0% -
10%. It is now anticipated that the date for the allocation of benefits and operating agreement will
be delayed. The District will continue to review its level of participation as the project moves
forward.

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA)
The District is recognized by DWR as the exclusive Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)
for the North San Benito Groundwater Basin.

The District has completed the development of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). The
District applied for and received a planning grant in the amount of $830,336 to develop the plans
for completing the State-required GSPs for these basins. Another round of funding was announced
by DWR to assist with plan preparation. The District received an additional $1.2 million to help
with installation of additional monitoring wells and a Managed Aquifer Recharge project. The
District has acquired access agreements and completed installation of the monitoring wells.

The North San Benito GSP was adopted by SBCWD and Valley Water GSA and was submitted
to and approved by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) on January 12, 2022.
The 2022 GSP provides the basic information, analytical tools, and projects and management
actions for continued groundwater management, guided by SGMA and by locally defined
sustainability goals, objectives, and metrics. Annual reports continue to be submitted as required
by the April 1 deadline. Per the SGMA regulations, a periodic evaluation of the GSP is expected
to be completed by January 2027.

Future Water Supply Storage Options

Consistent with recommendations made in the recently completed Hollister Urban Area Water and
Wastewater Master Plan Update, the District is working on an evaluation of local water storage
alternatives for the future. Currently, the District is in negotiations the United States Bureau of
Reclamation on the B.F. Sisk dam raise project that would add an additional 130,000 ac-ft of
storage to San Luis Reservoir. Through the San Luis and Delta Mendota Water Authority the
District would obtain up to 5000 ac-ft of the available storage. At a mid-point of construction
estimated cost of $1,100,000 the District’s cost of the project would be approximately
$40,000,000. Funding for the project will be provided through the District’s approved Capacity
Fee of $12,265 for each equivalent single family home built.

Reservoir Management Plans

In 2017, the District completed preparation of an operations planning tool to create annual plans
for operation of Hernandez and Paicines Reservoirs and for re-diversion of Hernandez Reservoir
releases to Paicines Reservoir at the San Benito River Diversion. 2018 marked the first year the
operational planning tool was used to manage reservoir releases for groundwater recharge. This
planning tool has been incorporated into the SGMA GSP. The District continues to use the
Reservoir Management tools to manage the surface waters of San Benito County to augment
groundwater supplies.

1ii



FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Rate Policy

The Board of Directors adopts water rates for groundwater and surface water deliveries. The
District follows the Proposition 218 landowner notification, protest process and public hearings
for the adoption of new or increased rates and charges related to groundwater and San Felipe
Contract and Small Parcel customers.

Budgetary Control

The District is not required by statute to adopt a budget; however, it does so annually to outline
the major elements of the forthcoming year's operating and capital plans and to allocate funding
required for those purposes. Budget appropriations for major capital projects continue from year
to year until the project is completed. A quarterly financial report is reviewed by the Board Finance
Committee and reported to the Board of Directors.

Accounting Systems

The District's books and records are maintained on an enterprise basis, as it is the intent of the
Board to manage the District's operations as a business, thus matching revenues against costs to
provide water service and implement programs to control, manage and conserve water. Revenues
and expenses are recorded on the accrual basis in the period in which revenue is earned or expenses
are incurred.

Internal Controls

The District's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal
controls designed to safeguard the District's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and 2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management. The District's management believes that the current system of internal controls
adequately safeguards the District's assets and provides reasonable assurance that accounting
transactions are properly recorded.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its annual
comprehensive financial report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. This is the tenth
year that the District has been awarded a Certificate of Achievement. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a District must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
annual comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
ACFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the members of the San Benito County Water
District's Board of Directors for their interest and support in the financial operations of the District.
It is the responsible and progressive manner in which business is conducted that makes the District
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successful. I would like to extend special recognition to the District Finance and Administrative
staff for their commitment to excellence in financial reporting. In addition, I would also like to
thank the District's auditors McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman for their significant technical
contribution and assistance. It is the combined effort of all participants that resulted in the issuance
of this financial report.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeff Cattaneo
Interim General Manager

Megan Holland
Manager of Administration, Finance & Business Services



DISTRICT PROFILE

DISTRICT FORMATION

The District has broad powers for the conservation and management of water (flood, surface,
drainage, and ground water). The primary focus of the District is the management of water quantity
and quality throughout San Benito County including, where appropriate, the development of local
water supplies and the development and importation of water supplies from outside the County.

The District is a California Special District formed in 1953 by the San Benito County Water
Conservation and Flood Control Act. At that time, the District merged with the Hollister Irrigation
District, becoming the successor to the water rights, water facilities and land interests of the
Hollister Irrigation District. The name was changed from San Benito County Water Conservation
and Flood Control District to San Benito County Water District in 1988.

SERVICE AREA

The District encompasses all of San Benito County, with an area of approximately 1,400 square
miles and a population of over 64,210 people. Residential communities served include: City of
San Juan Bautista, City of Hollister, unincorporated urban areas surrounding Hollister and Tres

Pinos.

The District provides water service and water related services through zones of benefit. Current
zones of benefit are:

District Administration (Zone 1)

San Benito River System (Zone 3)

San Felipe Project (Zone 6)

Groundwater Sustainability Plan (Zone 7)
DISTRICT ORGANIZATION
A five-member Board of Directors (Board) governs the District. Board members are elected for
four-year terms from divisions that are coterminous with the supervisory districts of San Benito

County. Directors must be a resident of, and a registered voter in the division they represent.
Members begin service in December of even numbered years.

To facilitate matters, most matters coming before the Board are first considered by one of its
committees. Each committee then reports to the full Board, which makes the necessary decisions.
There are ten standing committees:

Finance

Investment

Administration

Recycled Water

Zone 3 Operations and Water Supply
Zone 6 Operations and Water Supply
Personnel

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion

San Felipe Division Activities
Groundwater Sustainability Agency
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Several ad-hoc committees exist for special purposes and meet on an as-needed basis.
In addition, Board members serve as the District representatives to the following Board of
Directors and multi-agency committees:
> San Luis & Delta Mendota Water Authority (2 positions)
Association of California Water Agencies-Joint Powers Insurance Authority
Pajaro River Watershed Flood Prevention Authority
Water Resources Association of San Benito County

Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan Governance Committee (2
positions)

YV V VYV

An organizational chart of the District appears on page xii of the introductory section.

In 2014, the State of California passed the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).
This law outlines new requirements and tools for ensuring the long-term sustainability of these
critical sources of water supply. The District is the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for
the North San Benito Groundwater Basin. The District is cooperating with Santa Clara Valley
Water District (SCVWD), which is the GSA for small portions of the Hollister and San Juan-basins
within Santa Clara County. More information on SGMA can be found on the District’s website
(sbcwd.conm/sustainable-groundwater-management).

WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The principal water available to water users is local Groundwater and imported Central Valley
Project (CVP) water. Local surface supplies are primarily percolated into the groundwater basin
for later recovery through pumping by individual users and domestic water suppliers. The imported
water supply from the San Felipe Project is available for use within the defined zone of benefit.
The system provides for direct delivery to agricultural and other rural properties and for centralized
delivery to the Hollister area for urban use. Under District rules and regulations, available imported
surface water is supplemental to groundwater and is allocated to users within the zone of benefit
on an annual basis.

Groundwater use, within the North San Benito Groundwater Basin had exceeded the natural supply
for decades and a state of overdraft (use exceeds basin's natural ability to replenish itself) existed.
Due to the District’s management activity which includes management of local surface water
supply and the importation of CVP water, the groundwater basin had fully recovered by 2001. The
drought beginning in 2007 put pressure on the groundwater basin but storage was sufficient to
sustain demand. We will continue in a period of recovery as long as we continue to get an average
of 20,000 acre-feet per year of imported water. If not, management activities will need to be
modified. The current land uses, and the economy of San Benito County depend upon the water
placed in groundwater storage and the water imported by the District. These conditions require
careful management, data collection and analysis. The District maintains a groundwater and
surface water quality database to support these efforts.

As a matter of practice, the Board of Directors has requested a groundwater report each year. The
objective of this report is to conduct an audit of critical water resources and the actions taken to
manage these resources, as well as making recommendations for management actions for
forthcoming years. Public notice of this process is provided to encourage the participation of
landowners and groundwater users.
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In the 1950s, the San Benito River System was undertaken for storage and percolation of locally
occurring surface water. The system was established to mitigate the overdraft in part of the San
Benito portion of the Hollister-Gilroy Groundwater Basin. The Hernandez Dam was constructed
and placed in operation in the early 1960s for the storage of locally occurring water. The District
continues to operate this facility, as well as the Paicines Canal and Reservoir which was built in
1913 and rehabilitated in the early 1960s. The District holds water rights licenses from the State
of California for Hernandez Dam and Reservoir, San Benito River and Dos Picachos Creek. These
water rights permit the diversion and storage of surface water for percolation into the ground for
later recovery and use. Water is released for percolation through the streambed at the San Benito
River, Tres Pinos Creek, and a natural drainage adjacent to Dos Picachos Creek.

In the late 1970s, the San Felipe Project was initiated to correct the remaining overdraft in the San
Benito County portion of the Hollister-Gilroy Groundwater Basin, to provide a water supply of
appropriate quality, and to provide through conjunctive use an expanded water supply. The San
Felipe Project's zone of benefit contains approximately 47,500 acres. The District has contracted
with the United States on behalf of landowners for water service from the San Felipe Division of
the federal CVP. The District and the landowners and water users within this zone of benefit are
the beneficiaries of State of California water rights held by the United States. These water rights
are subject to the continuing jurisdiction of the State of California. Water use is subject to federal
laws and regulations and the terms and condition of the contracts between the United States and
the District.

The original San Felipe Project was to provide a high-quality supplement to the local supplies to
correct the groundwater overdraft, provide alternative supplies in certain areas with poor quality
water (high Boron levels) and a firm long-term water supply. Since that original planning, the
supply available to the District from the CVP has been significantly reduced as the CVP addresses
water quality, endangered species, and the addition of fisheries as a principal purpose of the CVP.
The District has undertaken a number of initiatives to identify projects and programs to ensure its
supplies and restore reliability.

WATER SUPPLY

The District manages the federal contract with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR)
for delivery of water through the San Felipe unit of the Central Valley Project. The total federal
contract entitlement is 43,800 acre-feet of water per year (35,550 acre-feet of Irrigation, 8,250
acre-feet of Municipal and Industrial). Based on availability of water the USBR allocates a
percentage of the contract entitlement.

The local water supply consists of water rights for Hernandez Dam and Reservoir, the San Benito
River system, and the Dos Picachos Creek. The use of the water from Hernandez and the San
Benito River is for spreading and later recovery by pumping from wells. The Dos Picachos water
is diverted from December through May for spreading and later recovery by pumping from wells.

The District has worked cooperatively for years with the County of San Benito, City of Hollister
and Sunnyslope County Water District to implement recycled water use. Current recycled water
use includes City of Hollister landscape irrigation. Since 2016, recycled water has also been
delivered to agriculture users.

Additionally, from time to time, the District participates in transfers or purchases of water from
other agencies.
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WATER TREATMENT

With the execution of the Hollister Urban Area Water Supply and Treatment Agreement
(HUWSTA) in 2013 by the District, the City of Hollister, and Sunnyslope County Water District,
the District became the owner of the upgraded Lessalt Water Treatment Plant and began design
and construction of the West Hills Water Treatment Plant which was completed in October 2017.
This agreement marked the beginning of the District providing wholesale treated drinking water
to the City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District.

Groundwater in the Hollister Urban area is characterized by high mineralization, driving customers
to utilize water softeners to mitigate the high hardness. As a part of the District’s CVP contract,
the District is entitled to up to 8,250-acre feet of M&I water annually. Completion of upgrades to
Lessalt and construction of West Hills now allows the District to fully utilize its CVP M&lI
allocation each year. This directly benefits City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District
customers by delivering drinking water with significantly lower hardness which allows them to
remove salt-based water softeners.

WATER RESOURCES ASSOCIATION OF SAN BENITO COUNTY

The Water Resources Association of San Benito County (WRASBC) operates under a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the District, the City of Hollister, the City of San
Juan Bautista, and Sunnyslope County Water District. The purpose of the organization is to
promote water resource management in a coordinated, cooperative and cost-effective manner
within the County. This is accomplished through implementation of public and special purpose
educational programs, public communications, compilation of water resource data and frequent
communication among the agencies regarding water management activities. WRASBC is reported
as a fiduciary fund of the District who manages the staff and financial resources of the WRASBC.

X
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The mission of the District is to preserve the economic and environmental wealth and well-
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the provision of water services in a practical, cost-effective and responsible manner.
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2511 Garden Road 379 West Market Street

Suite A180 Salinas, CA 93901
Monterey, CA 93940 831-424-2737
831-373-3337 Fax 831-424-7936

sEEH

McGilloway | Ray
Brown | Kaufman

ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

Fax 831-373-3437

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of San Benito County Water District
Hollister, California

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate fund
information of San Benito County Water District (the District), as of and for the year ended June
30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statemer hich collectively comprise the

In our opinion, the financial statements referred t
the respective financial position of the business-ty ) ‘iles and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the District as of June 30, 2023, and the'r spectlve changes in ﬁnanc1al posmon
principles generally accepted in the United State

Basis for Opinions

- with.auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of t cial Statements section of our report. We are required to
be independent of the “San.Benito County Water District, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we'have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

We conducted our audit in accord:

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s

ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Gerald Ray, CPA | Patricia Kaufman, CPA, CGMA | Smriti Shrestha, CPA

Daniel M. McGilloway, CPA, CVA | Sarita Shannon, CPA | Whitney Ernest, CPA | Laura Armbruster, CPA |
Rose Maxwell, CPA | Eleonora Garra, CPA | Lisctte Craft, CPA



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control rele
procedures that are appropriate in the circumst
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Distr
opinion is expressed.

presentation of the financial s

e Conclude whether, in our J :
aggregate, that raise substanti
concern for a reasonable peric

We are required to commun those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and g of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of the District’s retirement plan’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability (asset) and related ratios, schedule of the District’s pension plan
contributions, schedule of changes in the District’s net Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
liability, and schedule of the District’s OPEB contributions, as identified in the accompanying
table of contents, information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s



responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The schedule of net position by
zone and the schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The schedule of net
position by zone and the schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net position are the
responsibility of management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of net position by zone and the schedule of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position by zone ar stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

cluded in the annual report. The other
ctions but does not include the basic
.Our opinions on the basic financial
we do not express an opinion or any form of

Management is responsible for the other informatio
information comprises the introductory and statlstlcal
financial statements and our auditor’s report t

statements do not cover the other information, 2
assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the
information and consider whether a |

ed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement
e required to describe it in our report.

McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman
Salinas, California
June 26, 2024



San Benito County Water District

- Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

This section of the District's annual financial report presents our analysis of the District's financial
performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Please read it in conjunction with the
Financial Statements which follows this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The net position at June 30, 2023 was $149,458,357 which reflects an increase of
$5,523,199 from prior year.

e Operating revenue was $8,561,579 and operating expenses including depreciation and
amortization was $15,896,639. Additionally, non-operating revenue was $13,048,366,
consisting primarily of tax assessments and grant revenue.

e Non-operating revenue increased $1,662,669 and non-operating expenses decreased by
$378,406 which resulted in a $1,284,263 net increase over prior year.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the San Benito County
Water District's basic financial statements. The District's basic financial statements have three
components: 1) Management's Discussion and Analysis, 2) Basic Financial Statements and 3)
Notes to Financial Statements. In addition to the Basic Financial Statements, other supplementary
information is provided for further information and analysis.

The Financial Statements of the District report information about the District using accounting
methods similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements present both short-
and long-term information about its activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, and provides information about the nature and
amount of investment in resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors (liabilities).
This statement provides the financial information to evaluate the capital structure of the District
and to assess the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. The difference between the
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is shown as net
position. Over time, increase or decrease in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report all of the current year
revenues and expenses. This statement reports the financial impact of the District's activities over
the past year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all of
its costs through its user fees, charges and other revenues.

The Statement of Cash Flows is intended to provide information about the District's cash receipts
and cash payments during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments,
and net changes in cash as a result of operations, capital activities, and investments.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide a description of the accounting policies used to
prepare the financial statements and present material disclosure required by Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) that are not otherwise present in the financial statements.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

Net Position
The following is the condensed Statement of Net Position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023
and 2022:

San Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Change
2023 2022 Amount Percent
Current assets $ 81,655,226 § 72,706,645 $§ 8,948,581 12.3%
Other assets 24,874,527 27,046,248 (2,171,721) -8.0%
Capital assets, net 75,997,796 77,113,610 (1,115,814) -1.4%
Total Assets 182,527,549 176,866,503 5,661,046 C32%
Deferred outflows of resources 3,189,374 4,453,387 (1,264,013) -28.4%
Current liabilities 7,020,321 5,708,404 1,311,917 23.0%
Long-term liabilities 27,479,979 29,280,381 (1,800,402) -6.1%
Total Liabilities 34,500,300 34,988,785 (488,485) -1.4%
Deferred mflows of resources 1,758,266 2,395,947 (637,681) -26.6%

Net Position:

Net mvestment in capital assets 72,920,668 73,679,010 (758,342) -1.0%
Restricted 30,618,767 27,219,448 3,399,319 12.5%
Unrestricted 45,918,922 43,036,700 2,882,222 6.7%
Total Net Position $149,458,357 $§ 143,935,158 $ 5,523,199 3.8%

Net position increased in 2023 to $149,458,357 up $5,523,199 from fiscal year end 2022.

The increase in restricted net position reflects the contributions to restricted reserves for future
repayment of the USBR Amendatory Contract (refer to Notes to Basic Financial Statements No.
14), capital asset replacement related to the Water Treatment plants per the Hollister Urban Area
Water Supply and Treatment Agreement (HUWSTA), Reach 1 Facilities for major repair and
replacements and the Other Post Employment Benefit Trust (OPEB).

Net investment in capital assets decreased by $758,342. This is a direct result of the principal
payments on the City National obligation and higher depreciation expense.

The change in current assets is $8,948,581 which reflects a cash increase of $5,549,272 of which
$3,399,319 is in restricted cash. Prepaid expenses decreased by $23,341 and accounts receivable

increased by $211,360.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

The decrease in long term liabilities is the net result of the payments received for unearned revenue
related to the HUWSTA Contract and the decrease in the net pension liability.

At the end of the fiscal year 2023, the District had $3,189,374 of Deferred Outflows of Resources
and $1,758,266 of Deferred Inflows of Resources. Deferred Outflows of Resources decreased by
$1,264,013 and Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased by $637,681 over the prior year. The
activity reflects changes in assumptions, expected and actual experience, changes in proportion
and contributions to the District’s pension and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) plans.
Additional information on the District’s pension and OPEB plans can be found in Notes to Basic

Financial Statements Nos. 10 and 12.

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The following is the Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022:

San Benito County Water District

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Change
2023 2022 Amount Percent
Revenues:
Operating revenues $ 8,561,579 § 9,363,846 § (802,267) -8.6%
Nonoperating revenues 13,048,366 11,385,697 1,662,669 14.6%
Total Revenues 21,609,945 20,749,543 860,402 4.1%
Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization
expense (3,628,807) (3,449,944) (178,863) 5.2%
Operating expense (12,267,832) (6,674,273) (5,593,559) 83.8%
Nonoperating expense (190,107) (568,513) 378,406  -66.6%
Total Expenses (16,086,746) (10,692,730) (5,394,016) 50.4%
Change in Net Position 5,523,199 10,056,813 (4,533,614) -45.1%
Net Position, Beginning of Year 143,935,158 133,878,345 10,056,813 7.5%
Net Position, End of Year $149,458,357 $143,935,158 § 5,523,199 3.8%

Operating revenue decreased by $802,267.

Non-operating revenue reflects a increase of $1,662,669 from prior year. The increase reflects both
an increase in property tax revenue and an increase in interest revenue.

Total expenses decreased by $5,394,016. Operating expenses increased by $5,593,559 primarily
due to an increase in pension and cost of water expenses. The non-operating expense decrease of
$378,406 is partially due to the reclassification of multi-year projects in FY 2022 reflecting smaller
amount of them going forward.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

The various operating and non-operating revenues are as follows:

SOURCES OF REVENUE
Fiscal Year Ended 2023

Taxes and
Assessments
54%

Interest
Revenue
6%
Other
0% Revenues
1%
EXPENSES
Fiscal Year Ended 2023
Material &
Equipment

2%

General and
Administrative
\ / 3%
Utility Expenses
3%

T

Investment
loss
4%

Interest
Expense
1%



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Capital Assets

Capital assets include land and land rights, source of supply plant, pumping plant, transmission
and distribution system, general plant, treatment plant and water rights. The change in general
plant includes three District vehicles and a tractor. The increase in transmission and distribution
plant includes replacement valves and upgrades to the District telemetry equipment and software.
The pumping plant increase reflects pump repair work. The treatment plant change reflects the
tracer study for West Hills. Other significant increases are in Water Rights. The Reach 1 Capital
Improvement is part of the on-going project with Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD) for
major repairs and replacement of equipment at the Reach 1 facilities. The Central Valley Project
(CVP) water rights reflect the portion of the payments on the Second Amendment of the USBR
contract that are the capital costs for the San Felipe Division.

At June 30, 2023, the District had $116,949,604 in capital assets with $30,844,889 in accumulated
depreciation and $10,106,919 in accumulated amortization for a net amount of $75,997,796 (refer
to Notes to Financial Statements No. 6).
San Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Capital Assets
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Change
2023 2022 Amount Percent

Water rights

Semitropic Water Storage $ 776,726 $ 696,716 § 80,010 11.5%

Central Valley Project 19,035,625 17,227,135 1,808,490 10.5%

San Justo Reservoir 246,462 246,462 - 0.0%

Wright Rd Pipeline 830,850 830,850 - 0.0%

Reach 1 capital improvement 9,985,046 9,742,628 242,418 2.5%

Recycled Water Storage Pond 1,511,540 1,509,313 2,227 0.1%

USBR In-basin capital repayment 2,838,779 2,838,779 - 0.0%
Source of supply plant 3,002,139 2,982,546 19,593 0.7%
Transmission and distribution plant 21,277,505 20,982,261 295,244 1.4%
Pumping plant 10,271,242 10,243,832 27,410 0.3%
General plant 1,918,105 2,034,657 (116,552) -5.7%
Treatment plant 44,379,200 44,341,598 37,602 0.1%
Land and land rights 876,385 876,385 - 0.0%
Total capital assets 116,949,604 114,553,162 2,396,442 2.1%
(Accumulated amortization) (10,106,919) (8,465,917) (1,641,002) 19.4%
(Accumulated depreciation) (30,844,889) (28,973,635) (1,871,254) 6.5%
Net capital assets $ 75,997,796 $§ 77,113,610 § (1,115,814) -1.4%




San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Long Term Debt

The District had obtained financing in 2016 for capital improvements related to the HUWSTA and
the Recycled Water projects for a total of $5,500,000 with City National Bank. At the end of this
fiscal year, the District’s remaining obligation for this loan was $3,077,128. Additional
information can be found in Notes to Basic Financial Statements No. 8.

In February 2021, new debt was issued in the amount of $2,905,000 to pay off the USBR In-Basin
Capital obligation to be consistent with the WIIN Act. Additional information can be found in

Notes to Basic Financial Statements No. 8 and 14.

In April 2021, new debt was issued in the amount of $3,016,000 for the CalPERS Unfunded
Accrued Liability to reduce the interest on the obligation long term. The payment made to
CalPERS is reflected in Deferred Outflows of Resources and will reduce the District’s pension
liability in the next fiscal year. Additional information can be found in Notes to Basic Financial

Statements No. 8 and 10.
San Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Long Term Debt
June 30, 2023 and 2022

June 30, June 30, Change
2023 2022 Amount Percent
City National Bank loan payable $ 3,077,128 § 3,434,600 $ (357,472) -104%
2021 Water Refunding Obligation
Bond 2,563,000 2,734,000 (171,000)  -6.3%
2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation
Bonds 2,630,001 2,794,000 (163,999)  -59%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

General Property Tax Revenue
The District’s budget includes revenue from general property tax and San Felipe land tax. Changes
to the expected tax revenue are considered in the budgeting process.

Interest Rates
The economic environment has provided some increase in interest rates over the last year. The
District’s investment income is affected by these rates and current economic conditions will be

considered in the budgeting process.

Review of Zone 6 Rates and Charges
The Zone 6 process for the review of rates and charges and development of the annual budget
considers the impact of the following:

1) Proposition 218
Agencies are subject to a statutory landowner notification and protest process for any rate

increases. The District complies with this requirement. Rates have been approved for Zone 6
San Felipe water, Groundwater and Recycled Water through water year 2025-2026.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

2) San Felipe Project Reach 1

The District, in conjunction with SCVWD has current and future financial obligations for the
operation and maintenance costs of the San Felipe Project, Reach 1 facilities (all facilities from
Pacheco Pumping Plant at San Luis Reservoir to the bifurcation structure at Casa de Fruta). In
2007, the District and SCVWD negotiated an agreement with the intent to clarify the business
relationship between the two entities as it relates to the operations and maintenance of the
Reach 1 facilities. This agreement provided for a review of the current conditions of the
facilities, definition of a standard for operating conditions and development of a program to
keep the facilities at that standard on an ongoing basis.

SCVWD has developed a comprehensive asset management plan for the ongoing maintenance
and repair of the San Felipe Facilities. This asset management plan includes a schedule of
future capital projects. The cost of the ongoing maintenance and repair and capital projects is
considered in the budgeting and rate setting process.

Since 2007 when the initial condition assessment was done, the District has contributed close
to $9.8 million toward capital projects. This has included major repair of the regulating tank,
the communication cable, rebuilding of several pumps (pumps described in the Statistical
Section-Facilities) and replacement of the adjustable speed drives on 12 pumps. SCVWD also
did a condition assessment of the Pacheco Conduit. The assessment resulted in the installation
of new air valves, an acoustic monitoring system which listens for wire breaks and an
additional valve at bifurcation. Additionally, the fire suppression system is being upgraded.
The current asset management plan calls for an average of 1 pump repair each year at an
approximate cost of $1 million (District’s share of $220,000).

3) United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) Central Valley Project (CVP) Water
Allocations

Annually, the USBR specifies to each of the contractors in CVP, the initial percentage of their
water contract that will be delivered in the upcoming water year which begins March 1. In past
recent years, due to the pumping restrictions in the Delta for the protection of endangered
species and physical drought in the State, water delivery allocations had been reduced.
Allocations also vary from year to year depending on hydrogeological conditions. For water
year 2020-2021, the District received 20% of its Agricultural (AG) and 70% of its Municipal
and Industrial (M&I) allocations. In 2021-2022, the District received 0% for AG and 25% of
historic use for M&I. The USBR allocation for water year 2022-2023 to the District was 0%
AG and 0% M&I. The M&I allocation may be adjusted by application for Public Health and
Safety needs. The District includes consideration of these volumes in its rate reviews.

4) Zone 6 Groundwater Rates and San Felipe Distribution Rates

The rate base for groundwater rates includes the costs associated with managing the
groundwater basin and the costs associated with percolation. Anticipated projects and program
costs to address groundwater issues and other surface and groundwater management initiatives,
including the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (effective January 2016) are expected
to be included in future rates and charges review. Groundwater rates are expected to increase
as the District worked to recover from the groundwater impact of the drought through active
percolation and the purchase of additional imported water to offset pumping.

San Felipe water rates are based on the operations and maintenance costs associated with the
delivery of San Felipe water. These costs include the District's share of the operations and

10



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

maintenance costs for the USBR Central Valley Project, the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water
Authority (SLDMWA), and the San Felipe Reach 1 facility maintained by the SCVWD as well
as the District's own operation and maintenance costs. The pass-through costs from other
agencies are included in the District’s cost of water, and can change as these agencies’ O&M,
capital and power expenses change. Current rates do not fully recover these operating
expenses. The District aims to recover as much of the operating expense as possible through
rates, however, given the changes in volume of water available through the CVP, the coverage
ratio is subject to variability. Consideration of cost recovery from rates is included in the rates
and charges review.

Raw water rates charged to the District’s urban distribution customers (the City of Hollister
and Sunnyslope County Water District) are considered wholesale rates, and are not subject to
Proposition 218. The wholesale rates have been set for water year 2022-2023 to reflect the
cost of additional water purchase required for the water treatment plant supply.

5) San Luis & Delta-Mendota Rewind Project

SLDMWA operates the Jones Pumping Plant on behalf of the USBR. The rewind of the six
22,500 horsepower pumps are part of current capital project for the SLDMWA. Each rewind
is approximately $6 million, and all South of Delta contractors, including the District must pay
their respective share of the costs based on each agency’s contract water deliveries. The first
rewind was completed in May 2019 and the last unit is scheduled to be complete in May 2023.

6) B.F. Sisk Reservoir Raise Project

The USBR is working on a project to raise the level of the B. F. Sisk Reservoir (commonly
known as San Luis Reservoir) for seismic safety purposes. SLDMWA is doing planning work
to explore the possibility of a concurrent project of raising the dam an additional 10 feet to add
additional storage space for South of Delta contractors who wish to participate. The District
is a participant in the SLDMWA activity agreement that was executed in May of 2022.

7) Delta Mendota Canal Subsidence

Land subsidence has occurred in areas that surround the Delta Mendota Canal that has
diminished the carrying capacity of the canal. Repair estimates are approximately $500
million. SLDMWA is leading efforts to seek federal and state funding for the financing of
these repairs. The District would need to pay its proportionate share of costs that are not funded
by federal or state grants. The District relies on this canal in the delivery of its CVP water.
The solution may have future impact on rates.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a
general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need any additional information,
contact the District office.

San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Rd.

Hollister, CA 95023

Phone: (831) 637-8218

Fax: (831) 637-7267
www.sbcwd.com
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San Benito County Water District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets: .
Cash and mvestments 46,381,755  § 41,051,017
Receivables, net 3,376,657 3,165,297
Contract receivable - current portion 1,176,176 1,145,671
Prepaid expenses 101,871 125,212
Restricted cash and nvestments 30,618,767 27,219,448
Total current assets 81,655,226 72,706,645
Noncurrent assets:
Net pension asset - 1,849,819
Contract receivable-noncurrent portion 19,479,202 20,655,376
Development costs 5,395,325 4,541,053
Capital assets
Water rights, net 22,279,330 21,787,187
Depreciable, net 52,842,081 54,450,038
Nondepreciable 876,385 876,385
Total noncurrent assets 100,872,323 104,159,858
Total assets 182,527,549 176,866,503
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows of resources - pension activities 2,961,821 3,908,164
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 227,553 545,223
Total deferred outflows of resources 3,189,374 4,453,387

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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San Benito County Water District
Statement of Net Position (continued)

June 30, 2023

(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages, benefits and compensated absences
City National Bank loan payable - current portion
2021 Water Refunding Obligation Bond - current portion
2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation Bond - current portion
Due to other agencies
Contract customer water prepayments
Unearned contract revenue

Total current habilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Net OPEB liability

Net pension liability

Deposits

City National Bank loan payable - noncurrent portion

2021 Water Refunding Obligation Bond - noncurrent portion
2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation Bond - noncurrent portion

Unearned contract revenue
Total noncurrent habilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources - pension activities
Deferred mflows of resources - OPER
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Revolving fund reserve requirement
Operation and maintenance reserves
Contract repayment reserves
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust
Contract replacement reserves
Unrestricted
Total net position

2023 2022

2,854,586 1,404,883
202,424 397,918
369,048 357471
174,000 171,000
169,001 164,000
1,113,446 1,987,110
961,640 80,351
1,176,176 1,145,671
7,020,321 5,708,404
10,052 267,375

331,146 -
101,500 87,500
2,708,080 3,077,129
2,389,000 2,563,000
2,461,000 2,630,000
19,479,201 . 20,655,377
27,479,979 29,280,381
34,500,300 34,988,785
1,395,294 1,925,824
362,972 470,123
1,758,266 2,395,947
72,920,668 73,679,010
75,000 75,000
4,395,222 4,144,537
20,872,875 18,271,576
943,914 887,360
4,331,756 3,834,975
45,918,922 43,036,700
149,458,357  §$143,935,158

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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San Benito County Water District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

Operating revenue

Operating expenses:

Cost of water

Wages and employee related expenses
Pension cost expense (gain)

Contract services

Material and equipment

General and administrative

Utility expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):

Taxes and assessments
Grant revenue

Other nonoperating revenues
Interest revenues

Investment loss

Interest expense

Other nonoperating expenses

Net nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Change i net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

2023 2022
$ 8,561,579 $ 9,363,846
1,875,591 2,458,690
2,770,615 2,304,705
2,596,779 (3,161,071)
3,761,037 3,940,006
398,527 353,798
425,823 358,387
439,460 419,758
3,628,807 3,449,944
15,896,639 10,124,217
(7,335,060) (760,371)
12,058,062 10,521,329
21,965 1,022,649
220,136 211,747
1,349,524 121,863
(601,321) (491,891)
(184,837) (192,647)
(5,270) (375,866)
12,858,259 10,817,184
5,523,199 10,056,813
143,935,158 133,878,345
$ 149,458,357 $ 143,935,158

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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San Benito County Water District

Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from operations
Cash payments to suppliers for operations

Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses

Cash payments for general and administrative expenses
Cash payments to other agencies

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Taxes and assessments collected
Grant revenue

Net Cash Provided by
Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets
Additions to preliminary survey and construction in progress
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest on long-term debt

Net Cash Used for Capital and
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received from cash and cash equivalents
Change in value of LAIF
Change in value of OPEB Trust
Sale/(Purchase) of investment

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances, Beginning of Year
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Balances, Beginning of Year

Balances, End of Year

2023 2022
$ 10,680,764 $ 9296693
(5212,528) (5,569,686)
(2,587,091) (4.230479)
(425,823) (358,387)
(1,743313) (248,952)
712,009 (1,110811)
11,492,453 10,486,050
21,965 492319
11,514,418 10,978369
(2,512,993) (2,342,905)
(854,272) (1216250)
(692,471) (739,258)
(184,837) (192,648)
(4244,573) (4,491,061)
1,349,524 121,863
(24,998) (276,158)
56,554 (144,610)
(632,877) (71,123)
748,203 (370,028)
8,730,057 5,006,469
41,051,017 39,451,401
27219448 23,812,595
68,270,465 63,263,996
$ 77,000,522  $ 68270465

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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San Benito County Water District
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

2023

2022

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents § 46,381,755

$ 41,051,017

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 30,618,767 27,219,448
Total Cash and Restricted Cash $ 77,000,522 $ 68270465
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss $ (7335060) § (760371)
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided (used)
for operating activities:
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 214,866 (164,119)
Depreciation and amortization 3,628,807 3,449,944
Provision (recovery) for allowance for doubtful accounts (2,169) (7051)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivables 356418 (766,726)
(Increase) decrease in contract receivable 1,145,669 1,101,589
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 23,341 137,760
Increase (decrease) in payables and accrued expenses 576,039 895,277
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits (195,494) (56,820)
Increase (decrease) in other post employment benefits (257,323) (599,595)
Increase (decrease) in pension labilities 2,180,965 (4,773,940)
Increase (decrease) in deposits 14,000 30,500
Increase (decrease) in customer water prepayments 881,289 (193,521)
Increase (decrease) in unearned contract revenue (1,145,671) (1,101,593)
Deferred outflows of resources - pension activities 946,343 (250,381)
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 317,670 57,580
Deferred inflows of resources - pension activities (530,530) 1,863,252
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (107,151) 27404
Net cash provided (used) for operating activities $ 712,009 $ (1,110811)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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San Benito County Water District
Statement of Fiduciary Funds Net Position
June 30, 2023

Water Resources Association

Custodial Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 586,037
Receivables 246,300
Total assets 832,337
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 7,615
Total habilities 7,615
NET POSITION
Restricted for the Water Resource Association 824,722
Total Net Position $ 824,722

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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San Benito County Water District
Statement of Changes i Fiduciary Funds Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Water Resources Association

Custodial Fund
Addition:
Agency contributions $ 367,151
Investment income 16,837
Total addition 383,988
Deductions:
Contract services 198,158
Material and equipiment 12,837
General and administrative 226,870
Total deductions 437,865
Change n net position (53,877)
Net position, beginning of year 878,599
Net position, end of year $ 824,722

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The San Benito County Water District (District) is a water conservation and flood control special
district governed by the San Benito County Water Conservation and Flood Control Act codified
as Appendix 70 of the California Water Code.

The District is an independent and autonomous agency, governed by a five-member Board of
Directors directly elected by electors in five divisions. The boundaries of each division are
coterminous with those of the supervisory districts of the County. A director must be a resident
of and a registered voter in the division they represent.

District zones are not distinct or separate units of government from the District and the financial
operations and activities related to those zones of benefits are included within the District's
financial statements as one legal entity. No separate financial statements are prepared for the
individual zones of benefits.

The Water Resources Association custodial fund utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for
reporting its assets and liabilities. The fund is used to account for receipts and disbursements
associated with the Water Resources Association, which is administered, but not the liability of,
the District

The accompanying supplementary information to the District’s Financial Statements includes the
financial activities of the District Administration (Zone 1), San Benito River System (Zone 3),
and San Felipe Project (Zone 6) and the Ground Sustainability Plan (Zone 7). These zones were
formed to undertake projects and provide water supply and related benefits to specific
geographic areas within the District.

B. Basis of Accounting

The District's single enterprise fund (a business-type activity) and fiduciary fund are accounted
for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized when earned, and expenses are
recognized when they are incurred.

C. Accounting Principles

The accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountant (AICPA).

D. Basis of Presentation and Measurement Focus

The District's single enterprise fund is accounted for on a cost of service or "economic resources"
measurement focus. This means that assets and all activities are included on the statement of net
position. Operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total
assets. The financial statements distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering services in connection with the District's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for sales and services for
delivering water. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, general and
administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses. Non-operating
revenues include revenues from taxes and assessments that are general purpose and/or special
purpose in nature. The Fiduciary fund is used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside of the District.
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San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

E. Budgets

The District’s Board of Directors annually adopts a capital and an operating budget for the
ensuing fiscal year effective July 1 as a financial plan for the year. The budget is adopted by the
governing Board as an operating plan. Although there is no legal requirement to report budgetary
basis financial information in this report, the District’s Board of Directors review performance to
budget on a quarterly basis.

Debt Management Policy

The District adopted a debt management policy which outlines the purposes for which debt may
be issued, methods of financing, and the acceptable structure and term of debt obligations.

F. Joint Powers Agreements

The District is a participant in the Association of California Water Agencies, Joint Powers
Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) for the purpose of obtaining property and liability insurance.
The District also participates in the San Luis Delta-Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA) for
the purposes of operating and maintaining a portion of the Central Valley Project.

G. New Accounting Pronouncements

The District applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements for certain accounting and financial reporting guidance.

The District implemented the following statements for the year ended June 30, 2023:

¢ GASB Statement No. 96 — In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by (a) establishing uniform
accounting and financial reporting requirements for subscription-based information
technology arrangements (SBITAs); (b) improving the comparability of financial
statements among governments that have entered into SBITAs; and (c) enhancing the
understandability, reliability, relevance, and consistency of information about SBITAs.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2022. The District has implemented this pronouncement for the fiscal year 2022-
23 and has had no impact on the financial statements.

¢ GASB Statement No. 99 — In April 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus
2022. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and
financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by
addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for
financial guarantees. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2022. The District has implemented this pronouncement for the
fiscal year 2022-23 and has had no impact on the financial statements.

Pending Accounting Standards

GASB has issued the following statements which may impact the District’s financial
reporting requirements in the future:

¢ GASB Statement No. 100 — In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections — An Amendment of GASB Statement No 62. The primary
objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements
for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable,
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San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing
accountability. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2023. The District has not yet determined the effect of the statement which
would apply to the Districts fiscal year end June 30, 2024.

¢ GASB Statement No. 101 — In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101,
Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance
for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and
measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously
required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2023. The District has not yet determined the effect of the
Statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30, 2025.

¢ GASB Statement No. 102 — In December 2023, GASB issued Statement No. 102,
Certain Risk Disclosures. The objective of this Statement is to provide users of
government financial statements with essential information about risks related to a
government’s vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2024, and all reporting periods thereafter. The District has not yet determined the effect
of the Statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30, 2025.

H. Cash and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand
deposits, money market accounts, short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition and investments with Local Authority Investment
Fund (LAIF) managed by the State of California. Deposits in LAIF are generally available for
withdrawal on a next day basis and therefore considered cash equivalents.

For purposes of determining cash equivalents, the District has defined its policy concering the
treatment of short-term investments to include investments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased, as cash equivalents if management does not plan to reinvest the proceeds.
Short-term investments that management intends to rollover into similar investments are
considered part of the investment portfolio and are classified as investments.

Investments - All investments are stated at fair value, except for money market investments
which have a remaining maturity of less than one year when purchased, which are stated at
purchase price.

Under the provisions of the District's investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of
the California Government Code, the following investments are authorized:

U.S. Treasury Obligations, or Federal Agency Securities

FDIC Insured Certificates of Deposit

Fully Collateralized Certificates of Deposit

Commercial Paper, (rated in highest short-term ratings category)

California's Local Agency Investment Fund

Securities of the State of California, its agencies, or any local agency within the state
Medium term corporate notes (rated "A" or better)

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (rated "A" or better)

Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies that are money
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San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

market funds registered with Securities and Exchange Commission (highest rating by at
least 2 rating organizations)

¢ Registered Treasury Notes or Bonds of any of the other remaining 49 states

¢ Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized pursuant to
Section 6509.7

Investment Held in Local Agency Investment Fund - The District participates in the LAIF, an
investment pool managed by the State of California. LAIF has invested a portion of the pool
funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities. LAIF’s investments are subject to credit
risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these investments. In
addition, these structured notes and asset-backed securities are subject to market risk as a result
of changes in interest rates.

LAIF determines value on its investment portfolio based on market quotations for those
securities where market quotations are readily available and based on amortized cost or best
estimate for those securities where market value is not readily available.

The District valued its investments in LAIF as of June 30, 2023, by multiplying its account
balance with LAIF times a fair value factor determined by LAIF value for all LAIF participants
by total aggregate amortized cost.

I. Receivables
Receivables include amounts due from water utility customers as well as amounts due from

property taxes, contracts, interest, and other receivables. An allowance for doubtful accounts is
made annually. Receivables are reported net of the allowance for doubtful accounts.

J. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid expenses.

K. Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments represent allocations of cash and investments that are a statutory
or contractual requirements. The District has established various accounts to provide for specific
activities in accordance with special regulations and restrictions placed by contracts, laws, or
regulations of other governments. Specific detail on source of restrictions is provided in Note 9 —
Net Position. Restricted resources are used first to fund expenses incurred.

L. Development Costs

Development costs consist of costs associated with construction in progress and other works in
progress including the District’s share of participation in multi-agency projects. The costs are
capitalized and depreciated at the completion of construction in accordance with the District’s
Capital Asset Policy.

M. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the District as property with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets with high portability
(computer equipment, furniture, and shop equipment) are considered for capitalization at an
individual cost of more than $2,500.

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. Assets that were placed in service during any fiscal year begin
depreciation on the first day of the next fiscal year.
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San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Source of supply plant 25-75 Years
Transmission and distribution plant 20-75 Years
Pumping plant 7-10 Years
Treatment Plant 7-25 Years
General plant 5-10 Years

Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical
cost if actual historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are recorded at their
acquisition value, market-based entry price on the date contributed. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to operations when incurred.

Betterments and major improvements, which significantly increase values, change capacities, or
extend useful lives, are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of capital assets, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is included in the results of operations.

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all
beneficiaries over the life of these assets, so that each landowner's/customer's bill includes a pro
rata share of the cost of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year
represents that year's pro rata share of depreciable capital assets.

Depreciation and amortization of all capital assets in service, excluding land, are charged as an
expense against operations each year and the total amount of depreciation taken over the years,
called accumulated depreciation and amortization, is reported on the statement of net position as
a reduction in the cost basis of the capital assets.

N. Water Rights

The District participates in various water storage and water rights agreements for imported
surface water. These agreements are included in capital assets as water rights.

O. Compensated Absences — Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

The District's employment policy provides for the accumulation of earned vacation leave and
vested sick leave. Due to the limited number of employees, the District has elected not to
conduct actuarial assessments of sick leave. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are
recognized as an expense and a liability at the time the benefit vests. Accrued vacation and sick
leave are reported as current liabilities on the statement of net position.

Maximum vacation accruals are based on years of service within the District. All full-time
employees hired prior to July 1, 2020 are eligible for six (6) days of sick lease per fiscal year. All
full-time employees hired on or after July 1, 2020 are eligible for twelve (12) days of sick leave
per fiscal year. Unused sick leave may be carried over to the limit of 1,040 hours. Public
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS)

The District offers two retirement plans to its employees. Employees hired before January 1,
2013 or hired after January 1, 2013 who met the definition of “Classic Member” as defined by
CalPERS are members of the CalPERS Classic Plan. Employees hired after January 1, 2013 are
members of the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act Plan (PEPRA Plan).

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the San
Benito County Water District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)
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San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS finance office. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. See Note 10
for the CalPERS Classic Plan disclosures.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2021
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2022
Measurement Period (MP) Julyl, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Management Policy

A policy was adopted to address the management of the ongoing UAL associated with the
District. The policy includes target funding objectives, strategies for minimizing the liability,
and consideration of Additional Discretionary Payments during the budgeting process.

P. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The District provides post-employer retirement benefits to its employees to assist with future
medical premium costs.

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. Generally accepted accounting
principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes.

GASB 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2021
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2022
Measurement Period (MP) July1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Q. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position has a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expenses/expenditure) until then. The District has the following items that
qualify for reporting in this category:

¢ Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 10.

¢ Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 12.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position has a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has the following items that qualify for
reporting in this category:
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¢ Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 10.

¢ Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 12.

R. Net Position

The statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources. The difference between
assets and liabilities is net position. The three components of net position are:

Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of net position consists
of capital assets, including infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization
and reduced by the outstanding balance of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of constraints placed on the use of net
positions by external restrictions imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted — This category represents net positions of the District that do not meet the
definition of "Restricted net position" or "Net investment in capital assets, net of related
debt."

S. Operating Revenue Recognition

Revenue from water sales is based on customer usage which is recognized on a monthly basis or
when the customer is contractually obligated to pay, whichever comes first. Well permitting and
other operating revenues are recognized at the time the service is provided.

T. Property Taxes and Assessments

Property taxes and assessments are collected by the County of San Benito and are payable by the
taxpayer in two installments each year. The District recognizes property taxes and assessments as
non-operating revenue in the fiscal year of levy.

The District levies the following voter-approved taxes and assessments:

¢ A land tax on behalf of San Felipe Division of the Central Valley Project (Zone 6). This
tax is a per annum assessment based on the assessed valuation of land for properties
within Zone 6.

¢ A standby charge for the availability of service from the San Felipe Distribution system
on properties in the area of Zone 6 served by the pressurized distribution system. This
per-acre charge is established annually by the Board of Directors.

¢ In addition to special purpose taxes and assessments, the District receives a portion of the
County of San Benito general purpose tax, which is allocated to the District by the
County.

U. Grants

In the normal course of operations, the District receives grant funds from Federal and State
agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose
of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability
for reimbursement, which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material.
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Y. Amortization

The District has contracted with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) for water
service and for operation and maintenance of certain works of the San Felipe Division of the
federal Central Valley Project (CVP). A portion of the payments under this contract represent
repayment of the capital cost associated with the San Felipe Division. The capital component is
capitalized as Water Rights at the time it is paid and amortized using the straight-line method,
over the remaining entitlement period. Current interest on this contract is expensed as it is paid
and recorded in Cost of Water.

Capital projects related to the operations and maintenance of the San Felipe Division Reach I are
capitalized, and the associated costs are amortized using the straight-line method, over the
estimated useful life of the asset.

W. Restricted and Unrestricted Resources
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s practice
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

X. Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and
the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2023 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Cash and investments $ 25,014,133
Restricted cash and investments 30,619,127
Current mvestments 21,367,622

Total cash and nvestments $ 77,000,882

The bank balance and carrying value of the District's cash and investments, including restricted
and designated balances, at June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Undesignated
Restricted Designated Unrestricted Total

Petty Cash $ - $ -5 200§ 200
Union Bank of California - - 4,006,961 4,006,961
Heritage Bank of Commerce - - 2,103,899 2,103,899
Local Agency Investment Fund 325,000 14,553,179 4,350,254 19,228,433
Union Banc Investment Services 28,778,301 - 21,367,622 50,145,923
Santa Clara Valley Water District

(San Felipe- Reach 1 Reserve) 571,552 - - 571,552
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 943,914 - - 943,914
Total $30,618,767  $14,553,179  $31,828,936  § 77,000,882
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Deposits - Cash balances held in banks are qualified as "public funds"; these funds must be FDIC
insured or collateralized by the Depository at a rate of 110% and comply in all aspects with the
provisions of Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4, Article 2 (commencing with Section 53630)
of the Government Code.

As of June 30, 2023, the District had the following cash and investment maturities:

Value Cost 0-3 Months
Petty cash $ 200 $ 200 $ 200
Union Bank of California 4,006,961 4,006,961 4,006,961
Local Agency Investment Fund 19,228,433 19,228,433 19,228,433
Heritage Bank of Commerce 2,103,899 2,103,899 2,103,899
Santa Clara Valley Water District 571,552 571,552 571,552
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 943,914 538,223 943,914
Union Banc Investment Services 50,145,923 50,843,073 50,843,073
Total $ 77,000,882 $77,292,341 §77,698,032

Investments

The District has an investment policy that is overseen by the Investment Committee of the Board
of Directors. The investment policy conforms to state law and guidelines and is based on prudent
money management principles and practices.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest Risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of
its fair value to changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting exposure to fair value
losses arising from rising interest rates, the District's investment policy limits the maturity of
investments not to exceed 5 years without authorization by the Board of Directors at least 3
months prior to the investment.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest
rate fluctuations is provided by the preceding table that shows the distribution of the District’s
investment by maturity.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities,
mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total District
investments represent a concentration. At fiscal year end, the District had no concentration of
credit risk investments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the District
and that the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities. Credit risk is mitigated by investing only in U.S. Treasury Obligations, Federal
Agency securities and in other high-quality investments, and by diversifying the portfolio so that
the failure of any issuer would not unduly harm the District’s cash flow. The District diversifies
its investments by security type and institution. The District only invests in those instruments
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that are considered very safe.

As of June 30, 2023, the District’s investments with the Local Agency Investment Fund were not
categorized as to custodial credit risk. The restricted cash for San Felipe Reach 1 Reserve of
$571,552 is held by Santa Clara Valley Water District within its General Fund.

Summarized below are the ratings of the District’s cash and investments:

Veribanc, % of

Issuers Value S&P Moodys Inc. Total

Local Agency Investment Fund § 19,228 433 NR NR NR  25.0%
Union Bank 4,006,961 A+/ST-2 Baa2  Green/***  52%
Heritage Bank 2,103,899 NR NR  Green/***  27%
Santa Clara Valley Water District 571,552 NR NR NR  0.7%
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 943914 N/A N/A 1.2%
UBC Investments 50,145923 A+/ST-2 Baa2  Green/*** 65.1%
Total $ 77,000,682 100.0%

*NR - denotes Not Rated

Green — denotes the institution's equity exceeds five percent of its assets and it was profitable during
the most recent reporting quarter. Of the three color categories, this is the highest based on the
criteria described.

*** . denotes mstitutions that have a Three Star rating.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are not in the possession of an outside party.

Under California Government Code Section 53651, depending on specific types of eligible
securities, a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its Agent having a fair
market value of 105% of the District’s cash on deposit. All of the District’s deposits are either
insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with pledged
securities held in the trust department of the financial institution in the District’s name in
accordance with the California Government Code.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District participates in the LAIF, an investment pool managed by the State of California.
The LAIF is a special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments
may pool investments. At June 30, 2023, the total fair value amount invested by all public
agencies in LAIF is $178.4 billion and managed by the State Treasurer. No amounts were
invested in derivative financial products. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has
oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State
Statute. The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying
financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided
by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which
are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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Disclosures Related to Fair Value Measurement

The District measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-

tiered fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical

assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly or indirectly and fair value is determined through the use of

models or other valuation methodologies including:

» Quoted price for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are inactive.

)
> Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
>

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement. Theses unobservable inputs reflect the District’s own assumptions about
the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including
assumptions about risk). The unobservable inputs are developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances and may include the District’s own data.

Deposits and withdrawals in governmental investment pools, such as LAIF, are made on the
basis of $1 and not fair value. Accordingly, the District’s measured fair value of its proportionate
share in these types of investments is based on uncategorized inputs not defined as a Level 1,

Level 2, or Level 3 inputs.

The District had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2023

Investment Type Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
U.S Treasury Notes  $ 50,145,923 $ - $ 50,145,923 $ -
3. RECEIVABLES, NET
Receivables at June 30, 2023 consisted of the following:
Water utility customer receivables, net of allowance $ 545,793
Other operating receivables 1,742
Interest receivable 117,065
Property tax and assessment receivables 559,050
Grant receivables, net of retention 6,347
Agency receivables 2,146,660
Total receivables, net $ 3,376,657

The Water Utility Customer receivables above reflect an allowance for doubtful accounts in the

amount of $53,956.

Grant receivables are recorded net of retention. The District has one grant at June 30, 2023 that is

expected to be complete in the next fiscal year.
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Agency receivables are reimbursements due from other agencies for shared expenses per
cooperative memorandum of understandings related to projects. These receivables represent the
expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and are expected to be reimbursed in the next
fiscal year.

4. CONTRACT RECEIVABLE

In August 2013, the District, Sunnyslope County Water District (SSCWD) and City of Hollister
(COH) each approved the Hollister Urban Water Supply and Treatment Agreement (HUWSTA).
The agreement defined the roles and terms of financing for the project which included the
upgrade of Lessalt Water Treatment Plant, the design and construction of the West Hills Water
Treatment Plant and associated pipelines. The District was to finance, build, own and operate the
upgraded Lessalt Water Treatment Plant and the new West Hills Water Treatment Plant.

The District financed $30 million of the project costs. The District contributed $10 million in
non-reimbursable funds, of which $4 million was made available for the first tranche of
financing and $6 million was made available for the second tranche of financing. COH opted to
use their share of the non-reimbursable funds to buy down the capital component. SSCWD used
their share as rate stabilization which was applied to the finished water payments during the first
years of operation. The District funded the first tranche of $13 million on the effective date of the
agreement. The second tranche of $17 million was made available on May 1, 20135, to support
the execution of a contract for construction of the West Hills Water Treatment Plant. In January
2016, the third tranche of financing for $4 million was funded through a loan agreement with
City National Bank.

The agreement calls for the District to recover this investment in the capital projects from the
COH and SSCWD over a 15-30 year period through a capital component, including interest, in
the finished water rate. At June 30, 2023, the tranches combined